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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”) has been established as a market
designed to accommodate companies to which a high
investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may
list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor
any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue
paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain
up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility
for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed
in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are
fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as Asian
Information Resources (Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2006.

The Group continued to focus on logistics services including
freight forwarding services in China and Hong Kong. In the
meantime, it had disposed of the loss-making business of education
content services. During the year of 2006 the Group disposed of
the Eleson Group which related to the educational aspect of the
Group. The Group then continued its focus on and reviewed the
long term prospects of its logistics services.

As to the information technology division of the Group's business
services, over the past few years this division has contributed no
more than HK$1 million to the total turnover of the Group. With
this in mind, and given that the Company no longer sees any
potential for growth in the information technology division, the
management of the Company has decided to reduce the scale of
operations of the information technology division.

During the past year, there was a 4% decrease in the turnover of
the Group for 2006, and the loss for the year increased from HK$16
million for 2005 to HK$18 million for 2006.

Notwithstanding the management’s efforts in rationalizing our
operations and enhancing our cost efficiency during the last year,
the aim to attain profitability is yet to be achieved. In the year
ahead, the Group will continue to strengthen its ability to meet
the growing demand for quality logistics services and allocate
sufficient resources to develop the high potential PRC market.

Apart from the aforementioned operations, the Group continues
to explore investment opportunities which are strategic to our
business operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of our shareholders. To this end the Group, looking forward
to 2007, has decided to explore further opportunities for
development in the corporate finance sector.
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Chairman’s Statement
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New technologies, innovative business vision and a strong
professional team are the key assets of the Group contributing to
our competitiveness. We are confident that these attributes will
not only further our business growth but will also strengthen our
position as one of the leading one-stop logistics services providers
and corporate finance services providers in China and Hong Kong
respectively and will allow us to ultimately generate long-term
and sustainable returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to
thank the Group’s clients, suppliers, vendors, banks, business
partners, consultants and shareholders for their support and trust
generously given to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude
to the management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and loss attributable to shareholders

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2006 was approximately HK$281,532,000 (2005:
HK$293,234,000) which was decreased by approximately 4% as
compared to that of the previous financial year. The Group’s gross
profit margin is decreased from 12.6% for the year ended 31
December 2005 to 6.4% for the current year. The decrease in gross
profit margin is due to the fact that service providers have increased
their costs, while the Group continued to offer competitive prices
to its valued customers.

The consolidated loss from operations for the year was increased
by 6.9% to approximately HK$19,136,000 as compared with last
year. It was mainly due to the extremely competitive environment
which impacted on the operations of the Group.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2006 was approximately HK$1,406,000 (2005: HK$4,313,000)
which was decreased by approximately 67% as compared to that
of the same period of last year. Such reduction was mainly
attributable to the fact that the disposal of Eleson Group reduced
the Group’s financial cost which resulted from the interest-bearing
convertible note relating to Eleson Group.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As of 31 December 2006, the Group’s borrowing consists of a
loan from the ultimate holding company of HK$9,100,000. The
Group had a cash balance of approximately HK$6,237,000 (2005:
HK$7,974,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy to maintain
its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars, or in the local
currencies of the operating subsidiaries, maintaining a minimum
exposure to foreign exchange risks.

There was no change in the capital structure of the Group as at 31
December 2006 as compared with that as at 31 December 2005.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

H@@*Tﬁﬂ%&ﬁi‘ﬁ

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

On 13 September 2005, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Beijing Olympics Limited (“Beijing Olympics”)
pursuant to which 9,600 shares of US$1.00 each in Eleson Inc.
(“Eleson”) were sold to Beijing Olympics (the “Disposal”). Eleson
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the cultural
exchange services business and the holding of the property in the
PRC which comprises a campus at Yanjiao near the outskirts of
Beijing comprising a college with a gross site area of 100,000
square metres. The completion of the said Disposal took place on
23 May 2006.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2006, the gearing ratio of the Group, expressed
as a percentage of total borrowings over total assets, was 24%
(2005: 25%).

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2006, the Group employed a total of 246
employees (2005: 296 employees), of which 26 were located in
Hong Kong and the USA and the remaining 220 were located in
the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practices and formulated on the basis of
performance and experience of the employees. The salary and
related benefits of the employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis and the general remuneration structure of the Group
is subject to review annually.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group continued its focus on
core business in logistics services and information technology.

The Company has a sufficient level of operations in logistics
services and has sufficient assets to operate its business. Currently,
the Company does not have any financial difficulties to an extent
which may seriously impair the Company’s ability to continue its
business or which has led to the suspension of any of its operations.
The Company also has sufficient assets to operate its business
due to the continuing support of the major Shareholders of the
Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company shall focus its efforts in building up its profits
through the logistics services and corporate finance businesses
by way of achieving further expansion, and anticipates the coming
year will provide exciting opportunities for the Company,
supported by the encouraging global economic growth.

The Board is in the process of reviewing all the operations of the
Group to ensure that the returns from those operations can be
justified. The Board intends to dispose of all non-profitable
operations within the Group. Furthermore, the Board will strive
to reduce the operating costs of the Group.

Performance of operating divisions
Logistics Services

Considering the importance of the business and the issues
encountered by the Group last year in respect of the logistics
operations, the management has put much effort to improving the
operation through branches and subsidiaries in the following major
cities of China: Guangzhou, Nan Jing, Ningbo, Qingdao, Shanghai,
Shan Tau, Shenzhen, Tianjin and Xiamen. The effort includes but
is not limited to increasing customers, widening, improving
efficiency of our logistics services including freight forwarding
services and keeping tighter control on the accounting records.
The turnover of this operation increased by only approximately
1% compared to that of the previous period. This was mainly due
to the fact that the Group experienced an extremely competitive
environment which impacted on the turnover and gross profits of
the logistics operations. With continued efforts of the management,
the Company will increase quality clients for the coming year
with an increasing contribution to the Group.

Following the completion and review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2006 of the Hong Kong and USA
branches of Ever-OK International Forwarding Co. Ltd, the results
have shown that these two offices have become non-profitable
and will remain non-profitable for the foreseeable future.
Therefore both of these branches are in the process of being closed
down.

In order to make the logistics services more profitable, with
continued efforts of the management, the Company has planned
to target its development into the following areas: (i) Enhancing
the freight delivery and distribution services in the PRC for its
clients; (ii) Developing warehouse and logistics centres in the PRC
for distribution; (iii) Developing more major clients and providing
them with more value added services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Furthermore, with the “just-in-time” management concept
developed in recent years, the manufacturers, the distributors and
the retailers rely on frequent shipments to sustain production flows
and inventory rather than accumulating inventory in their
warehouses. This is also accelerating the development of the
logistics services business.

Information Technology

Over the past few years the information technology (“IT”) division
of the Group has only been able to contribute no more than HK$1
million in each financial year to the turnover of the Group. As a
result the Company does not foresee any further opportunities for
growth in the IT division of the Group, and so therefore the
management of the Company has decided to close the main portion
of the Group’s IT division.

From the end of 2006, the Company has steadily decreased its IT
division in an effort to reallocate the resources devoted to the IT
division to more profitable areas of the Company’s operations.
The Company will maintain an IT Division, however it will be on
a more reduced scale. This will allow the Company to reallocate
the Company’s resources to other areas of its existing operations,
as well as new areas of development which the Company wishes
to pursue in the coming year.

Trading Resumption

The trading of shares of the Company on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange has been suspended since 31 March 2005 due to
the delay in the publication of the 2004 annual accounts and reports
and the consequential delay in the publication of the Company’s
subsequent results and reports which fell due in the course of 2005.
On 14 March 2006, the Company announced that trading in the
shares remains suspended pending an announcement regarding
the clarification on the financial position and the internal control
systems of the Group.

All outstanding accounts and reports have been published, and
the Company has addressed, amongst others, auditors’
qualifications, the current financial position, operations and
internal control systems of the Company.

The trading of shares of the Company on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange resumed with effect from 9:30 am on Friday 15
September 2006.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant subsequent events of the Group are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 37, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 14
years of successful investment and management experience in the
areas of property and logistics in the People’s Republic of China.
He graduated from Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in
International Economics.

Mr. Yang Qiulin

Mr. Yang, aged 34, joined the Group in December 2006. He
graduated from Xiang Tan University, the People’s Republic of
China with a Business Management degree. He is a practising
lawyer as well as a certified public accountant of China. Mr. Yang
is now a senior partner of a law firm in Guangzhou, specializing
in commercial and corporate laws. Mr. Yang has over 8 years of
experience in the legal field.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

Vice Chairman

Mr. Lo, aged 53, is the principal of an investment and corporate
finance firm with offices in London and Hong Kong. Trained as a
chartered accountant from London, he is licensed as a Responsible
Officer by the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong
for providing Type 6 (Corporate Finance) advisory. He has
extensive expertise and experience in international corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, cross-border direct investments
and hedge funds investment, with emphases in lifestyle, real estate
and hospitality sectors.

He held directorate level or strategist positions with multinational
financial and emerging companies internationally. Besides the
Company, he currently serves as the non-executive Chairman of
the Board of Luk Fook Holdings Limited, the Executive Chairman
of Golife Concepts Holding Limited, and an independent director
of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited, all these are companies
listed in Hong Kong.

He graduated from University of Wisconsin-Madison and holds
post-graduate degrees and professional designations in
accountancy, law, finance, real estate and hospitality disciplines,
and specializes in corporate finance initiatives.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 60, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad. He
has published more than 220 papers and 18 books in the areas of
economics, finance and management.

Mr. Yang Zhenhong

Mr. Yang, aged 49, is a practising lawyer and arbitrator in the
PRC. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and a
Master degree in Laws. He has over 26 years of experience in
PRC taxation, company and commercial law. He is currently a
lawyer in a PRC law firm. He is also a part-time professor at
Guangdong Judges’ College (J& ¥ % B #bt) and legislative
consultant to the Standing Committee of Guangzhou People’s
Congress (M A K ¥ Z ). He is a committee member of
the Research Institute of Jurisprudence of the PRC (H7 5] 32; Bil &
fF 58 ) and the Research Institute of Taxation of the PRC (!
A B W58 €7) and a Vice-President of Guangdong Research
Institute of Taxation (B 34 M B E 5L &)

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 36, is a Certified Public Accountant and Certified
Tax Agent in the PRC. He holds a Bachelor degree in Economics
and a Master degree in Business Administration. He has over 13
years of experience in accounting, auditing and taxation. He is
currently a project manager in a firm of certified public accountants
in the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Siu Man

Vice President

Mr. Chan, aged 38, joined the Group in August 2006. Mr. Chan is
responsible for the strategic planning of the Group. He has
extensive management experience, particularly in the area of
logistics business. Mr. Chan has been a director of Chinese
Association for Development Strategy (" B %5 i 5k W B2 i/ 8 )
since October 2004.

Mr. Chan holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
The University of Western Sydney and a Doctorate degree in
Philosophy in Business Administration from Honolulu University,
USA.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Andrew James Chandler

Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

Mr. Chandler, aged 34, joined the Group in August 2006. He is
responsible for legal and corporate compliance related matters of
the Group. He is admitted as a barrister of the High Court of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 1998, and a barrister and
solicitor of the High Court of New Zealand in 1996. Mr. Chandler
has over 8 years of experience in the legal field.

Mr. Peng Zhi Heng, James

Qualified Accountant and Financial Controller

Mr. Peng, aged 44, joined the Group in November 2006. Mr. Peng
is both a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Peng has over 10
years of experience in the accounting field.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 1 February 2007, the name of the
Company was changed from “Asian Information Resources
(Holdings) Limited 55 S (#2 1%) 4 BR 22 7] to “Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited”, and for identification purposes,
its Chinese name to 57 Y & & (FE ) A PR/ Fl)”. A Certificate
of Registration of Change of Name of Oversea Company in the
name of “Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited” and the
Chinese name “55 #l & 2 (#4 ) 4 BR 22 7] for the Company has
been issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong under
Part XI of the Companies Ordinance on 15 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before income tax
expense for the year ended 31 December 2006 by principal
activities is as follows:

By Principal activities: ST P

Content solution and P 25 6 R it e 7 5%
business consultation M

IT enabling technology & AR A B A Al

Educational content services BE WA R

Logistics services W i R 5

Interest income FlE WA

Unallocated corporate expenses RAE ST HH 4 1 B X

Finance costs Al AR

A TS (THE ) A 2 0 2 W
M AR 7 AR MR E R A A
S BRI L AR B

A W) 4

MR ZFFLHEZH — H 8247 250 BOR
KEMEMZ R YRR - AR H 2 bR
[ Asian Information Resources (Holdings)
Limited 55 9508 (32 B PR 2 7] 8 % [ Asian
Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited| > & %
BRI > e A4 T A [ i N A (B
2wl o 7T B VA [ Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited] 5 H 3C 44 [ i Y ¥ 7 (45 Bt
VA FRA W] | 2 % FATIGHNA W) B 4 Z Gk
o CHFWBARGEMER “FELE=H
+ T H R BE 2 R R ) 56 XS 43 B AT o

5 1 RESE B B b I ) 2y 2 By B

AN Z EEEBRBERER - WEARZ
SR O B S R PR RE 19

ALEREZEZAF T A=+ —HILSE
JEE 4% 3 SR ) o) 2 SR B B Wi A 1R 4y
M :

Loss before

income tax

Turnover expense
BEW B B il s 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T F#oc
969 677

461 437
22 (2,155)
280,080 16,848
— 514

— (32,699)

— (1,406)
281,532 (17,784)
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An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before income tax
expense for the year ended 31 December 2006 by geographical

ALEREZEZAFE T A=+ —HILSE
JIE 42 1 [ ) 2 2 7 3 T B R A s 4L 43 A

areas is as follows: T
Loss before
income tax
Turnover expense
BEH B3 B i s 18
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
By geographical areas: 4 Hb [ 1 43
Hong Kong e 9,772 (12,258)
The PRC H 250,436 (4,251)
USA and others 5 B B H Al 21,324 (1,275)
281,532 (17,784)
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS ES 9,3 358

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 32 to 96 of this Annual
Report.

AEERE-REZAGE T A=+ —HILSE
JE 2 AR B A W) e ARG R % F 2 BB IR
VLHUR AR 2 B B R SR 32296 H ©

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

ERIWARRIRERE
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is as follows. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

S5 R RBE

7 [0 7% 208 A A A B R 2 S A R L
FRHERE (ABEZE A B R I s e 2 —
) mr

Results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December

AEMEGRE T A =1 — H LA

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

ZREBNE ZEFHF ZERWIE ZRREE ZFFDF

HK$’°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000

T T#0 T 0 T 40 T#c

Turnover s 281,532 293,234 209,474 1,144 1,859
Loss from ordinary JBE SR REAL H R

activities attributable EH R
to shareholders 17,071) (14,981) (6,078) (14,609) (4,852)
Loss per share (HK cents) B 1H (#4l) (3.58) (3.1 (1.3) (3.1 (1.0
Assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December
AEEEHBRET_HA=1—8H

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

CREBENE ZEFLF FEFWE ZFRFESF ERBROF

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000  HK$000

T T#c T#or T#or T#C

Total assets R 38,346 82,023 78,938 62,781 31,885

Less: Total liabilities W AERE (59,419) (75,896) (57,140) (50,373) (4,968)
Total net (liabilities)/assets  (Fi1&) & &

HAE A (21,073) 6,127 21,798 12,408 26,917

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, no share options were
granted (2005: Nil). Details of the share option scheme of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Yook ~ W5 B ik i

AR BN Z W~ W T B B ) A
U B WA M LS

JBe AR B Jifk I i

BN AN T Z BA B B o
MEE_FEANETH=1+—HILEEN
oo MR BRI (CRRLA ) o

BRI A 2 5] W A w2 R 2 SO B
FtiE29 o
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year is set out in note 27 to the financial
statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2006, the Company has no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders (2005: Nil) in accordance with
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
the largest customer 12%
five largest customers combined 29%
Purchases
the largest supplier 6%
five largest suppliers combined 24%

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during
the year.

8 S Dol M

AAT Z AT AR R U (A FGE
bR 37 2 i 3 B I ) 5 490 Sl A ) 4 s i e
ZRURE > A Aoy v 2 o Al 1 BUAT B R 2 %
BB AR

i BT~ DG del o £ A A W B

A0 ) e AT ] o 2 R AR 9 RS I
Ji 1] ot 45 A 2 W] AT AT R o

i i

A0 ) B A B A 9 2 faf A 5 8 A L 43 1)
AP B A POk 27 B R B i A ) R

wJ it 2 IR Gl i

MREFFAFET A=+ —H - A2
B0 1 B B AR 2 W) 2 LR AR AR WD SIE
AT IR T IR Z M (R F AR
§iE) o

PR

FEE P KAt

AN s AR E R ER P R T AN Y A
BRI T T ¢

8B

BREF 12%
A REFFAR 29%
73013

e KAt HE v 6%
FRAE T A 5 24%

WEFIR - FRRESR - WEZBHRAK
BEA A R BT IRAS A L2 B > i JE
ARG M TR KR e/ BT R R A AT
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Qiulin

(Appointed on 20 December 2006)
Mr. Ho Wing Yiu

(Resigned on 7 December 2006)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(appointed as Vice Chairman on 1 January 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jixue
Mr. Yang Zhenhong
Mr. Zhang Daorong

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Yang Qiulin who was appointed as a Director
after the last annual general meeting, will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In addition, in accordance
with Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
Wau Jixue shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Both retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Hg
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JBe SRR AR K B R AT
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 10 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the share option scheme
disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them, or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER HL95 il 75 5 00 B i ) 26 7 Bl s 2 T Ok
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION SO I8y B AH B I By 2 B 2 B iR AT

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2006, the following persons (other than the NoBBEANETFH=+—H > FHAL
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests and 23 ) AT BRI BRAD) A A 7 e B H
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company B B v A L B A 5 I Ak A1)
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the 3360 BT RLE HIAS A R A7 B 2 R A BT

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: ZHER RRA -
Long positions in the shares of the Company A ) By W
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Nature of ordinary issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity interest shares held capital
P ¥ 3% ik 2 ey
JBe 3 44 g1 Bl 2 PR BEH O BRAZEHTES R
Asian Dynamics International Beneficial Owner Corporate 264,934,000 55.63%
Limited (Note 1) (Fft&E1) TR A A A F
Aldgate Agents Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner Corporate 66,120,000 13.88%
(i 5E2) A A Al
New World Cyberbase Interest of a Corporate 66,120,000 13.88%
Limited controlled corporation A H]
St A U e A R A ] 5 0 R A
Notes: Bip
1. Asian Dynamics International Limited is a company incorporated 1. Asian Dynamics International Limited 2 — %
in the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Asian e 6 DR Lo B RE M AL 2 A F] > B Asian
Wealth Incorporated, Denwell Enterprises Limited, Glamour House Wealth Incorporated ~ Denwell Enterprises
Limited, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Chau Tak Tin. Limited ~ Glamour House Limited ~ P& W 5%

AR RIS S A A A o

2. Aldgate Agents Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of New 2. Aldgate Agents Limited 25 75 22 Bt b 7li (B 25

World Cyberbase Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange R = 276) Z it R G AL AT RR A 7] 2 &
(stock code 276). Their interests in the shares of the Company B A o 3% %A R TR Z AN B B HE
duplicate with each other. 223 JE AR A o
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, no persons,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose
interests are set out under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company that was required to be recorded under Section 336 of
the SFO.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules, as at 31
December 2006, the interest of each Director, management
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group is set

3 AU

B ESCR g B A - IR FRFAFE T ZHZ
T H > BRI AL ORA R # S R AT B
RO > PAF M AR R B O[3 AT A
BRIy ~ AR By B (i 0 2 M as R T ] —
) T A2 ) Ay A B e s 5 v AT A
5 5 B ] 5 R ) 5 3360 2 T e Bk M 2
WA -

BT i i

MR A EAR B ARS8 11,0408 » R TN
FHZA=T—H o AES - BHERREL
EE AP} YNV AN S oiip )
it B A7 SELA 5 ) 36 25 I3 T o T RN 3
FZHERME

out below:
Entity that competes
or may compete with
Substantial business of the Group Competing business
shareholder Vel 7 A5 ] 3 % of the entity
By '3 IBE T o W) TR T 2 W T ORI B T 2 B

New World Cyberbase New World Cyberbase Provision of total e-Business solutions including

Limited Limited software products, application total solutions
St A S B st St AL e S R and information technology services in the
HIRAF HIRAH Greater China Region

A8 K v 3 b ik 412 3t 4 Th R - 7 B RO R >
O 355 0P A i~ T R R 8RR O R e
Al R i B

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates had
an interest in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

B b SRR e 8 5 A > A R 2 g A B
B SR R AR S 4 2 T e N\ B B A B A4
SRS LB TR M BB S T R O T
S5 W i i S A 4R [ A T RE A AT 1 ) i
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MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian Dynamics
International Limited, New World Cyberbase Limited and Aldgate
Agents Limited, as disclosed above, there was no other person
during the year ended 31 December 2006 who was directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the shares then in issue of
the Company and who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct
or influence the management of the Company.

AUDITORS

CCIF CPA Limited were appointed as auditors for the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2005 and resigned on 7 December
2006. Patrick Ng & Company has been appointed to act as auditors
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2007.

A resolution for re-appointment of Patrick Ng & Company as the
auditors of the Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2007

B JBe

B b 3C BT 3% #8 Asian Dynamics International
Limited ~ 5 tH: 54 905 56 1o A7 B2 W] J Aldgate
Agents Limited¥h > B#E A > REEZZF
BARETZHZ T HILEER » BT
At A L R A AR A R R B B AT
JBe B 5% DA b HE 25 B v B B R AR A
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e ¥ i
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Board recognizes that such
commitment is essential in upholding the accountability and
transparency and to achieve a balance of interests between the
shareholders, customers, creditors, employees as well as other
stakeholders.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

To ensure compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise the
Company Code to bring our corporate governance practices in
line with the changes in the environment and requirements of the
Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the provisions of the Code for the year ended 31 December
2006, except: (i) under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision. However, all the
Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at annual general meetings pursuant to the articles of
association of the Companys; (ii) code provision A.4.2 of the Code
which requires that every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. According to the articles of association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that the chairman of
the board and /or the managing director of the Company shall
not, whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. As such, with the exception of the chairman
and the managing director, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation.

The management of the Company will strive to comply with all
the provisions of the Code by ensuring that the Directors are
appointed for a specific term and that the Directors will be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in future.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2006.
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of
the shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’
responsibility to create value for the shareholders as a whole and
safeguard the best interests of the Company and the shareholders
by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent
manner on the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of six Directors, with two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) and Mr. Yang Qiulin;
one non-executive Director namely Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(Vice-Chairman); three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Mr. Yang Zhenhong and Mr. Zhang
Daorong.

The Board meets at least four times a year with additional meetings
arranged when necessary, to review the financial performance,
results of each quarter, material investments and other matters of
the Group that require the resolution of the Board. Simultaneous
conference calls may be used to improve attendance when an
individual director cannot attend the meeting in person.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent based on the annual confirmations received.

Nomination Committee

Although the Board has not established a nomination committee,
it is responsible for considering the suitability of a candidate to
act as a director on the basis of his/her qualifications, experience
and background, and approving and terminating the appointment
of a director. The decision of appointing a director must be
approved by the Board. Any newly appointed director by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong, Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr. Yang Zhenhong, and has adopted
terms of reference governing the authorities and duties of the audit
committee. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal controls
of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this
report and has provided advice and comments thereon.
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The attendance record of each member of the Board during the
year under review is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings

Designation and Name

Wik 155 B ik 44
Executive Directors PirE S
Xie Xuan (Chairman) W ()

iy M (Bt 1)
Bikkwk (B it 2)

Ho Wing Yiu (Note 1)
Yang Qiulin (Note 2)

Non-executive director FPfT R

Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice-Chairman) BEFR (B R)
Independent non-executive Directors J v JE 47 2 9+
Wu Jixue A 1 52

Yang Zhenhong Bk it

Zhang Daorong RIE R

Note 1 Mr. Ho Wing Yiu resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company on 7 December 2006.

Note 2 Mr. Yang Qiuilin has been appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 20 December 2006. No board meetings for the
year were held since that date.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by the auditors, CCIF CPA Limited, to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$545,587
and HK$95,300 respectively.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for Accounts

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and external auditor’s reporting responsibilities are set
out in the Auditor’s Report.

Internal Control

The Directors have reviewed and are satisfied with the ability to
comply with the policies installed as part of the Group’s internal
control system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

held for the year ended 31 December 2006
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Breaches of the GEM Listing Rules

Breach of Rules 18.03, 18.48A, 18.49, 18.53, 18.66, 18.78 and
18.79 of the GEM Listing Rules

On 11 July 2006 the GEM Listing Committee concluded that:

1. The Company breached Rules 18.03, 18.48A, 18.49, 18.53,
18.66, 18.78 and 18.79 of the GEM Listing Rules; and

2. Each of the Directors breached his obligations under the
Director’s Undertaking to use his best endeavours to procure
the Company’s compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The facts of the case were that the annual results and the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2004
should have been published and dispatched on or before 31 March
2005. However, the annual results were not published until 23
December 2005. The quarterly results and the quarterly report for
the three months ended 31 March 2005 should have been published
on or before 15 May 2005. However, the quarterly results were
not published until 1 March 2006. The interim results and the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2005 should have
been published on or before 14 August 2005. However, the interim
results were not published until 1 March 2006. The quarterly
results and the quarterly report for the nine months ended 30
September 2005 should have been published on or before 14
November 2005. However, the quarterly results were not published
until 1 March 2006.

The Listing Division alleged the Company breached Rules 18.03,
18.48A, 18.49, 18.53, 18.66, 18.78 and 18.79 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company admitted breaching the said provisions of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The GEM Listing Committee decided to impose the following
sanctions on the parties:

— apublic censure on the Company for the said breaches; and
— apublic statement which involves criticism of the Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan and Mr. Ho Wing Yiu for their respective
breaches of the Director’s Undertaking.
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Breach of Rules 2.18 and 19.36 of the GEM Listing Rules:
Warning Letter

On 6 March 2007 the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
(“Division”) concluded that the Company had breached:

1. Rule 2.18 of the GEM Listing Rules in failing to disclose in
the 2003 Announcement the shareholders’ agreement and
the option agreement; and

2. Rule 19.36 of the GEM Listing Rules in failing to disclose
subsequent developments of the Property Sale from February
2005 onwards until 29 June 2005.

The Division alleged that by the Company’s announcement of 15
April 2003 (the “2003 Announcement”) the Company announced
Lecture Kit’s acquisition of 51% equity interest in Union
Resources (Educational Development) Limited (“UR”) from Pine
on 12 April 2003, and that the consideration for the acquisition
was the Company’s transfer of 20% shares in Lecture Kit to Pine.
The Division alleged the 2003 Announcement did not disclose:

1. ashareholder’s agreement between the same parties dated
12 April 2003 under which Pine had the right to demand the
Company to buy back 20% shares of Lecture Kit at HK$12.5
million in the event that no listing occurred for the Group’s
education business within an agreed period of time; and

2. an option agreement dated 12 April 2003 under which a
convertible note to discharge debts owed by UR to Pine was
to be issued in favour of Pine.

At the time, the sole assets of UR consisted of 100% shares in
UREDY PRC which in turn owned a property in the PRC (the
“Property”’). By the announcement of 18 February 2004 (the “2004
Announcement”), the Company announced the sale of the Property
to CDTC by UREDY PRC for RMB 50 million (the “Property
Sale”) and that the Company had received RMB 10 million deposit.
Between July 2004 and February 2005 the Company published
various announcements on the progress and developments of the
Property Sale. By February 2005, CDTC had already agreed to
pay RMB 55 million for the Property Sale. Taking into account
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the deposit received, the outstanding payment was RMB 45
million. By an announcement dated 4 February 2005, the Company
announced receipt of RMB9,375,000 in cash, RMB 25,625,000
by cheque (the “Cheque”) with the remainder by instalments in
2006 and 2007. However the Cheque was dishonoured and the
parties had since been negotiating the settlement of the outstanding
payments. Only in June 2005 upon the Division’s enquiry did the
Company disclose this fact.

Taking into account all relevant factors and circumstances of the case,
the Division decided that the breaches may fairly be disposed of by
way of a warning letter to the Company. The Board has recognized
the findings of the Division and will endeavour in future to seek legal
and compliance advice in handling notifiable transactions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asian
Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited set out on pages 32 to 96,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Except for the limitations in the scope of our work as explained
below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. However,
because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of
opinion section of this report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

(1) Scope limitation - Prior year’s audit scope limitation
affecting opening balances and comparative figures

As shown in the previous auditors’ report, they disclaimed
their opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2005 because of the significance
of the possible effects of the limitation in evidence available
to them in respect of certain matters set out therein. Any
adjustment found to be necessary to the opening net assets
of the Group would have a consequential effect on the results
for the year ended 31 December 2006. We were unable to
express our opinion on the fairness of the balances brought
forward as at 1 January 2006 and the comparative figures
included in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Scope limitation - Trade receivables and trade payables

Included in trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2006 were trade receivables and trade payables
in relation to the Company’s subsidiaries, Ever-OK
International Forwarding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(“EverOK”), in the amounts of HK$26,793,655 and
HK$29,113,677 respectively. These balances were stated
after the Group had written off a net amount of unreconciled
differences of HK$156,606 with respect to the trade
receivables and trade payables of EverOK. The net amount
of unreconciled differences was recognised in the income
statement as other expenses. The nature of the net differences
and the basis of determining the above mentioned trade
receivables and trade payables are described in note 3(a)(iii)
to the consolidated financial statements. We have not been
provided with sufficient information and explanations to
satisfy ourselves as to the nature and the appropriateness of
the net amount of other expenses of HK$156,606 as made
in respect thereof.

Any adjustments in respect of the foregoing matters would have a
consequential effect on the financial positions of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2006 and the loss and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended and/or the related disclosures
thereof in these consolidated financial statements.
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Fundamental uncertainty

As explained in note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group sustained a loss from ordinary activities
attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$17,071,000
during the year and had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$2,037,000 and shareholders’ deficits of approximately
HK$21,890,000 as at 31 December 2006. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends upon the financial support of the
ultimate holding company. The ultimate holding company has
agreed to provide loans with an aggregate amount up to
HK$10,000,000 to finance the working capital requirements of
the Group.

We consider that appropriate disclosures concerning the above
fundamental uncertainty have been made. However, in view of the
extent of the fundamental uncertainty described above, we are
unable to form an opinion as to whether the Group and the Company
can continue as a going concern. In addition, we are unable to
quantify the adjustments that would be required if these
consolidated financial statements were not to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

Disclaimer of opinion: Disclaimer on view given by financial
statements

Because of the significance of the possible effects of the limitations
in evidence available to us as set out in points (1) and (2) of the
basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this report and because
of the fundamental uncertainty as referred above, we do not express
an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2006 and of the loss and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects,
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the matters
as stated in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this report,
we have not obtained all the information and explanations that
we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

PATRICK NG & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants

20/F, Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

26 March 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement
GAaBmE

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #k %2 —

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Cost of services

Gross profit

Other revenue
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs
Provision for impairment
on other receivables

Loss before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Loss per share:
From continuing and
discontinued operations
— Basic

— Diluted

From continuing operations
— Basic

— Diluted

The notes on pages 38 to 96 form part of these financial statements.

BRAGF == A H UL

Notes

itk

FR R R
B3R 6

IR 25 B A

ey

Hfth e A 6
T B %

oAt 58 4% B S

R 8
il B AR 9
SH At R DS B R L 4 £ 30
g A5 i s 18

Jr 45 A58 BH 52 12
ANAE JIE R A AR S I 1R

(ARSI ¥ T30 13
AAEE B IR R T

il (18

A AE FE i 1H

TH L HEAG -

N/l S DN
& BB HORE 2

95 I 5 41 14
A R K
D& ILRBEY
— Rk
— W

o A R R
— A

—

i e

32 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited & ¥ % i (¥)8t) £ B2 7

2006 2005
CREAE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#T
281,510 293,162
(263,526) (256,357)
17,984 36,805
2,028 2,599
(37,988) (42,356)
(201) (1,722)
(18,177) (4,674)
(210) 27)
(34,593) —
(52,980) 4,701)
—_ (24)
(52,980) 4,725)
35,196 (10,946)
(17,784) (15,671)
(17,071) (14,981)
(713) (690)
(17,784) (15,671)
HK cents HK cents
(3.58) (3.10)
(10.97) (0.85)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meagEAfEE

As at 31 December 2006 #%E ~FEFENFE | _H="+—HI-4EE

2006 B 2005
TREANA ZREHA
Notes HK$i00£ HK$’000
Mt it F#x T#c
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES oA & £ A
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B A
Property, plant and equipment Y - Fﬁﬁ%&?){l% 15 1,487 31,571
Land lease premium + o FH & i 16 — 7,288
Development costs B 9% B AR 17 88 534
Goodwill = 18 — —
1,575 39,393
CURRENT ASSETS it B s
Trade and other receivables & 5y Fe FAth JE WA B 2k 20 30,534 34,656
Cash and Cash equivalents Bl B Bl HH W 21 6,237 7,974
36,771 42,630
CURRENT LIABILITIES o o £ 1%
Trade and other payables B 5 B L At A Mk 22 38,761 52,536
Obligations under finance leases BN Z R 23 47 —
Convertible notes ﬁfﬁﬂ?% 24 — 20,405
Tax payable JRE A At I — 2,955
38,808 75,896
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES Ui Bl 3 48 A (2,037) (33,266)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS B8 WU B £
CURRENT LIABILITIES (462) 6,127
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES It Bh £
Other payables j;@f@@ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%ﬂ:ﬂ 25 (4,796) =
Obligations under finance leases RS T 2 R 23 (40) —
Amount due to a director JWE A} 38 25 5k E 31 (5,503) —
Amount due to ultimate JRE Ak 3 #8222 e 2 ] ik JEL
holding company 31 (10,272) —
(20,611) —
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (B %) & i i (21,073) 6,127
CAPITAL AND RESERVES JBEAS B fii i
Share capital N 26 47,624 47,624
Reserves il i 27 (69,514) (43,027)
(Deficit)/Equity attributable to A\ ] SR HE AL
shareholders of the company HE 25 (21,890) 4,597
Minority interests A B OB 25 817 1,530
TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY MR hES (21,073) 6,127

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AMBRECR -RFLE=ZH T NHE

by the board of directors on 26 March 2007. WA R
Xie Xuan Yang Qiulin B e B KAk
Director Director HH HH

The notes on pages 38 to 96 form part of these financial statements. 38 H BB 96 H & Witk o A< A B Ak 2 —
£y o
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Balance Sheet

AR

As at 31 December 2006 = FEN

FETZH=1—HIE

2006 2005
ZREANA ZEFHA
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mt it T C T 0
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES o K& AR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS e B &

Interests in subsidiaries T Pt I A B 2 BE 2R 19 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS % A

Trade and other receivables & 5y B o Ath JFE L HR 3k 20 — 38
CURRENT LIABILITIES o 0 £ 1%

Trade and other payables B 5 B Al JE A MR Ak 22 1,091 979
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES Ui Bh £ 48 A (1,091) (941)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS B8 3 WU B £ 4

CURRENT LIABILITIES (1,090) (940)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES It 1) £

Amount due to subsidiaries JE AT A JEg A =] ik JE (4,939) (7,149)

Amount due to ultimate JRE Ak 5 48 222 1B O ] sk JEL

holding company 31 (10,274) —
(15,213) (7,149)
NET LIABILITIES 4 i (16,303) (8,089)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES JBE A % fii i
Share capital AR 26 47,624 47,624
Reserves e 27 (63,927) (55,713)
TOTAL DEFICIT L (16,303) (8,089)
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AHBEHRECOR-ZFLE=ZHA 1T AHE
by the board of directors on 26 March 2007. A A RE T o
Xie Xuan Yang Qiulin o I BBk bk
Director Director HH I

The notes on pages 38 to 96 form part of these financial statements. 38 H F AR 96 H Z Fif wk B A< B s K 2 —#B

Hy o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
b 2o 2 S )

For the year ended 31 December 2006 # £ _FFENFEFZH=+1—HILFE

Issued
share Share  Capital Convertible Translation Accumulated Minority
capital ~ premium  reserve note reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

i#
CHRORA  RENRE SABE BAWEE  EREE  RHER 5t R it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Té#r TE#x  Té#L  T#L T#x TEx TEx TéL T#x

At 1 January 2005 REZRLE~A—H 47,624 §7,707 35,343 3,495 — (154,591) 19,578 2,220 21,798

Loss for the year KEEER - - - — — (498 (14981 (690) (15671

At31 December 2005 R-ZZL4
and I Jamary 2006 FZAZH—HE

ZEEAE-A-H O 6 8107 35343 3495 — (16957 4,597 1,530 6,127
Transfer ai - — — (3,495) — 3,495 — = —
Disposal of subsidiaries i # i A 7 - — (03 — = — (9,323) = (9,33)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - — amomy (17,07 (713)  (17,784)

Exchange difference 411 J 2 4
on consolidation - — - — 93) = %3) = (93)

At31 December 2006  R_BENE
+ZA=+—H 4764 81707 26,020 = 93)  (183,148) (21,890) 817 (21,073)

The notes on pages 38 to 96 form part of these financial statements. SR8 AR 96 H Z P kg A o 5 ek 2 —
B
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

i e Bl Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #k %2 —

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax expense
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest on convertible notes
Other interest paid
Written off of unreconciled
inter-branch balances
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land lease premium
Amortisation of development costs
Impairment of goodwill
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Provision for impairment

on other receivables
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Exchange difference on consolidation

Operating loss before changes
in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayment,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease in amount due
from related companies
Increase in trade payables
Increase in accruals and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in
advances from customers

Cash used in operations
Other interest paid

Taxes paid - Overseas

Net cash used in operating activities

BRAGF == A H UL

BERBEEZ
Bl b
Wi A i s 17
WL T 2% B 2
A BB
L&k Zil)-)
FoAts & AFF B
T A e iR 2
2 [ A5 %
i3k ~ Wibs Bt
Z P ts
1 51 1 b L ¥ Y
B % A i 3
7 A A
B - Wb BB
z (k) hE
B 5 e W sk 2
AR fiE 1
At JE Wi R 5k
Z WAE S
Hh £ B g 2> ) Wi ai
fo M S 22

B 4 5 Y W

Z B R

B 5 e W sk

WA, ()
PRI - 5 Rl
W B sk A (5 I
Y AL 3] 2 ) sk L Dk A

B 5 W ASF 1 sk 384

T B2 2 M LAt A
HER K 14

P EGKW M, (K A)

RO ST I Bl &
HoAt ©AFAE
CABLE — #Eoh

RT3 4 i

30
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2006 2005
CERBANE 2= TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# F#x
(17,784) (15,647)
(60) (88)
245 4,013
210 300
157 1,711
1,899 3,033
71 170
446 446

— 4,944

(32) 6

51 11
34,593 —
(37,351) —
(124) —
(17,679) (1,101)
681 (8,018)
2,516 (4,013)
— 8

94 7,288

685 2,696

1 (19)
(13,702) (3,159)
(210) 27)
— (24)
(13,912) (3,210)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBEemER

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income

Payment to purchase property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of obligations
under finance leases
(Repayment to)/advance from directors
Advance from minority shareholders
Advance from other payables
Advance from ultimate
holding company

Net cash generated from
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

The notes on pages 38 to 96 form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 #% 2 _FEENEF _H=+—HILFEE

BB B R
LS BN

[ 3=CVE 93

B AT Z AR IH
B - BB R
A i 15k JH

H £ B 2 =] B 5k 0H 30
B35 B) B ) 2 BL 4
9 R ) 2 B A G
SO T 2 AR
EH (HR) 8K

A W B R EGK

Lt B ASF 3K I 2 sk
B A A58 I 2 ] K

ik T B 2k
Z Bl

BeRIAEFMHY
(W) /3 I 5 8

AR Z BLE R
Be%MHy

RAERZ B &R
BeSmEm

B4 B B4 A 23 B

Bl 4 Je SRAT R B

B

2006 2005
ZREAF ZRFRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#7T
60 88
(319) (594)
51 1
(12) —
(220) (505)
(56) —
(3,387) 4,505
770 —
4,796 —
10,272 —
12,395 4,505
(1,737) 790
7,974 7,184
6,237 7,974
6,237 7,974
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted Company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the functional currency of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are investment holdings, provision of on-line
content information and related technical services,
information technology solutions and consultancy services,
educational content services and logistics services. There
were no significant changes in the nature of its principal
activities during the year.

The Company was formerly known as Asian Information
Resources (Holdings) Limited and the shareholders of the
Company have passed a special resolution at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 1 February 2007 to
change its name to Asian Capital Resources (Holdings)
Limited.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company
is Asian Dynamics International Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are
relevant to its operations and either effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 or 1 January
2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no significant
effect on the Group’s accounting policies and amounts
reported for the current and prior accounting periods in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective. The directors anticipate that the application

of these new standards, amendments or interpretations will

have no material impact on the results and the financial

position of the Group.
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7

HKJIFRIC)-Int 7

HKJIFRIC)-Int 8

HKIFRIC)-Int 9

HKJIFRIC)-Int 10

Capital Disclosures /)

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary
Economies %

Scope of HKFRS 2 &

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment ©

(" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006

®  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November

2006
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EHEAEBOR
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted AEEREMHZ EEFFIEOREGH WM T -

by the Group is set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation (a)

(i) The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”),
which include all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

(ii) The Group sustained a loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$17,071,000
during the year and had net current liabilities and
shareholders’ deficits of approximately
HK$2,037,000 and HK$21,890,000 respectively
as at 31 December 2006. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the financial support of the ultimate holding
company agreed to provide loans of not more
than HK$10,000,000 in aggregate to finance the
working capital requirements of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(iii) Due to the failure to reconcile the balances of
trade receivables and trade payables effectively
by the new operational and auditing system and
control of accounting system adopted by EverOK
in 2005, management attempted to identify and
correct the errors by reconstructuring the
balances based on the verification work
subsequent to the year end date relating to the
payment and receipt of funds up to January and
February 2007 on trade receivables and trade
payables respectively in order to lighten the
impact. The resulting unreconciled net
differences of approximately HK$157,000
amongst trade receivables and trade payables
were written off as other expenses to the income
statement during the year. For the year ended 31
December 2005, the unreconciled net differences
of approximately HK$1,711,000 were written off
as other expenses to the income statement.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2006. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are consolidated from or to their effective dates of
acquisition or disposal, respectively. Minority interest
represents the interests of the outside shareholders in
the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members
of the Group.

The gain or loss on disposal of subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sales and
the Group’s share of its net assets together with any
unauthorised goodwill or negative goodwill and which
was not previously charged or recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Related party transactions

A party is related to the Group if:

a. directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under

common control with the Group;

(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;

b.  the party is a joint venture in which the entity is

a venturer;

c.  the party is an associate;

d. the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

3

HEEGHEOR ()

(d)

42  Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited i ¥ % & () 45 B 2wl

i g 2

FoFJags 2 =1 T4 B A 2 ) i 8 ) 2
B o i AR 2 W) AR L R ] 4 S
— [ B M R BUR DAY AL
B P > AR o RwE
i A ARSI R > 7% B Iy vl
T8 Z AR B R o

FoF Jag 2 ] 3 A 12 CL SO B LB B s
AN TR o AN T8 A
) 2 2 5 A Yol SR AL s 4R
%0

BN 38 5

ETHIEDT » AR AR A A
M Z BN A

a. BB Z M b B
Ji B

() TEHIARLEE > A%
B 5 o i, L A 4 [ 52 )|
JE ] e ] 5

i) A HBEATHERS » 3
AN A £
(3PS T TRE"

(i) A 46 M B A JL R g
il 3

b. AMALLAEREZIAE
Yl

c. HBALZBEEAT

d.  ABRALRALEZ EHE
BAHR




3

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

(e)

e. the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

f. the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

g.  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with
the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a subsidiary
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
arising from an acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity respresents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s share of the relevant
associate’s or jointly controlled entity’s net assets at
the date of acquisition.

Capitalised goodwill is presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet and is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e)

®

Goodwill (Cont’d)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising from an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate
or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill and impairment loss,
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— land lease premium;
— investment in subsidiaries; and

—  goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEAEBOR #)

(Cont’d)

(f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (Hh BB ERBIPEREZ W ()
(Cont’d)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable &AL A BB R » Rl Er st
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, B R R A o MO 0 BREER
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and e R {55 P 4 00 1 o R % JHETE
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the M5 o EEAEALFH W 4% > DA
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or e & R A LT AL AR -

not there is any indication of impairment.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount (i) S e A 1
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater B v Wi T R A A L R
of its net selling price and value in use. In MMM EAEZERH - R
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash AFAl S ) R > A R OR
flows are discounted to their present value using AR B 4 Ui 7 % A fE i B
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current B 5 AT A A R N A
market assessments of time value of money and Z A E R\ B 2 A i B
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset B R BUE o & AR
does not generate cash inflows largely B AE K B0 R Il A T
independent of those from other assets, the e B B 4 i A o B RT W)
recoverable amount is determined for the 7 e BB 48 i ek g /DAL A
smallest group of assets that generates cash e (R e B 4 B L) 2 W]
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating W el (1 o
unit).

(ii) Recognition of impairment losses (ii)  HE R WA M 1R
An impairment loss is recognised in the income B R (Sl P A B B
statement whenever the carrying amount of an 4 FiLASE) i SR i L 08 L T K
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it Wl > BP 8 A W as R
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. AR 18 < 9t e R B 4 B Asr
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash- MR B WA - W'
generating units are allocated first to reduce the TE Y7 A e B B 4 B (sl —
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the LA ) B 43 TE B4 A A T
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, R TR L, A% 9 B 491 ik A L
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets A (el 7% A B Ar ) JHCAth 5 8 Y
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, MRHIAE » M A R &
except that the carrying value of an asset will Wid BARH A & 1 A F{E
not be reduced below its individual fair value VOB A e R R i
less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable. FERE) o
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEEGHBOR @)
(Cont’d)
(f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (h HIEHERBIBEREZ WM ()
(Cont’d)
(iii) Reversals of impairment losses (iii) 35 ] % 11 45 15
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an MBI EE S - i
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a I DA 75 5 ] WA T B 2 A
change in the estimates used to determine the i B g > R 48 e fE
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in H o A B E R A
respect of goodwill is not reversed. AE 3 [l o
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the P88 0] 2 YA M 188 15 FIR 72 A% 28
asset’s carrying amount that would have been A4 B 3 A i W Ak AL s 4R T
determined had no impairment loss been 2K MR o
recognised in prior years. Reversal of Z VR AL s 15 7 T e R 8 el 2
impairment losses are credited to the income EEFEAERE o
statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
(g) Property, plant and equipment (g W% -~ WG Kt
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less W ~ B B 75 DA A st
accumulated depreciation and any impairments losses. P88 RALAT I AG s 15 511 MR o 3 7 Bk
The cost of assets comprises its purchase price and A 55 P M A ) o O
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to F| L f F IR B8 I b AR e i 2
its working condition and location for its intended use. FLIRMERT A o B AR AN ERR
Expenditure incurred after the asset has been put into BB > Bl A s RSB L >
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally —B AR B R R P R o
charged to the income statement in the period in which il T 75 28 R R % S A H AR
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly R - B R EE R
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an AR A £ 1G> B I S A
increase in the future economic benefits expected to %G Z AR

be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalized as an
additional cost of that asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(2)

(h)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 2% (over the remaining
lease term)
Leasehold 33% or over the lease
improvement terms, whichever
is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer and 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 33%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a property,
plant and equipment recognised in the income
statement is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Land lease premium

Land lease premium is stated at cost less amortisation
and any identified impairment loss. The cost of land
lease premium is amortised over the period of the
premium using the straight-line method.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalized and defined only when the
projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects are
technically feasible; and the products have commercial
value. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expended when incurred.
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(@)

0);

Research and development costs (Cont’d)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised, using the
straight-line method, over the expected useful lives of
the underlying products subject to a maximum period
of three years, commencing from the date when the
products are available for use.

The unamortised balance of development costs is
reviewed at the end of each year and is written off to
the extent that the unamortised balance, taken together
with further development and directly related costs, is
no longer likely to be recovered.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

0)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Cont’d)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses.

Investment in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognized
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sales securities. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses in respect of monetary items such as debt
securities, are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEFIHEOR @)
(Cont’d)
(k) Financial liabilities (k) ZRhffE

(i) Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares issued does not vary with
changes in their fair value, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds. The equity component
of the convertible notes is calculated as the
excess of the issue proceeds over the present
value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable to similar liabilities that do
not have a conversion option. The interest
expense recognised in the income statement is
calculated using the effective interest rate
method.

(ii) Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
and financial guarantee contracts, are carried at
amortised cost.

() Trade and other receivables (1))

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for the bad and doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m)

()

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Company will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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S 265 A T

3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. Interest in leasehold
land is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i)  From the provision of content information, on a
time proportion basis for the fixed license fee
portion and as entitlement accrues on usage for
the variable license fee portion.

(ii)) From the provision of project consultancy
services, internet solution services, educational
content services and logistics services, in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
contracts and when the underlying services are
rendered.

(iii) Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
on a time-apportioned basis that takes into
account the effective yield on the assets.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(s)

(®)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Advance payments received from customers prior to
rendering of related content information services and
internet solution services are recorded as receipts in
advance.

Revenue is recorded net of sales surtaxes, where
applicable.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation difference on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve
in equity.

S 265 A T

3 EEAEBOR #)

(s)

®

W gt e w2 (A)

T BB Bl P9 2 Ak T SR M5 S
T 08 7t e Ty % I 5 T 1 2 P O
A R T WK I DA BEGRR T A
HE o

Wi 73 770 B R R I B Cfivd 2 )
YN

AU 51
2y e 1 % A1 500 1 0

A5 T W B 25 BT 1) S 38R
A7 BR 2 v S P A A 32 SRS BR B
3 B (T RE B ]) Ze st R
fir o BRI B HAR A WICIIIE - #
W T A T Y o) BE B W R A R B
W o

R 5 R i b

BN 32 By 4538 T LI IE 3R S 4y
RN o PRI 5 BARAF K I
SR AN A BT A A A
ME R 25 9 5 A Bk A AR IR > HAE R
BB R S S B A
B 33 8 A J A 2 S i L Y [
i 4R 85 A FE B RR -

FEEE I B MR R (R A
AR EH S AE A5 IR A TR 2 4
g ACEE MR - R W E
Chn B A 5 A A B 85 36 1 M
AR) Wy 22 B ARERE h 2 4 F
fa ik 5 o

Annual Report 2006 4 55




Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translation at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEAEBOR #)
(Cont’d)
(u) Employee benefits (w HIHAN
(i) Employee leave entitlements (i) MWRZZHMBY
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long 8 B =0 Z 48 KR 30 s
service leave are recognised when they accrue BT A R A1 - B A
to employees. A provision is made for the B IR HER - AAF CHiiE B
estimated liability for annual leave and long R A H BT R A R
service leave as a result of services rendered by M 28 A AP % = 90 R 25 Bt
employees up to the balance sheet date. 2 At B4 H AR o
Employee entitlements to sick leave and 8 B 5 2 i 18 K e A A
maternity leave are not recognised until the time SC AR IRE J5 T DAMERE
of leave.
(ii) Retirement benefits schemes (ii) BIkEHIA G2
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in A oy ] 2 o 8 Fi O W) 2 B
defined contribution retirement schemes o I8 3 75 B A B s
organised by the local government authorities in AL OB IR BT E] o A
the PRC. All of the PRC employees are entitled B B ¥ Rk SRk
to an annual pension equivalent to a fixed portion H WCEUR B A 5 2 B AR
of their basic salaries at their retirement dates. 4 ] HR Ay 2 A B AR AR 4 o
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required Ay ) Z v 1B R A ) i A
to contribute certain percentage ranged from hEEE ZEARFEZEHET
11% to 15% of the basic salaries of their PRC H4rHe (A F11%%E15%) Bk
employees to the retirement schemes and have IR EE ] o Mk IR R AR
no further obligation for post-retirement benefits. A R 1 5 PSR AR o it
The contributions are charged to the income AP ML B8 % ) 2 A R A+
statement of the Group as they become payable WP AE A 4R Z a8 &b
in accordance with the rules of scheme. B o
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits schemes (Cont’d)

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Retirement Benefits
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Share option sheme

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value of
the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into accounting the probability
that the options will vest.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discounted, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(x)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment
assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between Group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar
terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowing, tax
balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars and Renminbi.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions
are limited to high-credit-quality financial institutions.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board of
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realizable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions, if any, to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful lives
are less than previously technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Estimated provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

The Group makes provision for doubtful debts based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. Provision are applied
to trade receivables and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
value of receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the fair value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value.
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BREBR IR

B (1) SRANH H B RS 2 H
% QRBNAEMZELE s Q) #
BB A A D T SRR < s 2 5 (4) 4
WEE NG Z B E 5 & 6) 74ty
TR Z B H > RABIEEEN AT

6 TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 6

Turnover represents (1) project fees from the provision of
project consultancy services; (2) distribution fees from the
provision of content information; (3) service fees from the
provision of internet solution services; (4) service fees from
the provision of educational content services; and (5) service

fees from the provision of logistics services and excludes MZRZHMT :
intra-Group transactions as follows:
2006 2005
SRRAE | SRBAA
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T-#C Fi#oc
Turnover BEB
Continuing operations: FrERE R -
Content solution service and PR 250 43 TR 7 %
business consultation W
— project fees —JHH % 204 298
— distribution fees — BXE 765 806
— consultation fees — & — 14,434
Internet solution service fees L A o Ty R R 461 398
Logistics service fees i R % e 280,080 277,226
281,510 293,162
Discontinued operations: BIEREEH
Educational content service fees HENE R 22 72
281,532 293,234
Other revenue JC b B 22
Continuing operations: FrEREER -
Other income Al e A 1,968 2,406
Reimbursement of salaries St 4 AR 0 1 — 132
Interest income A B WA 60 61
2,028 2,599
Discontinued operations: BIEREEH
Other income H At e A 454 460
Interest income B WA — 27
454 487
2,482 3,086
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7

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 7 AER
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) FEFPEHNX—EHS
For management purposes, the Group is currently MBS - A% H i HEA 1YIE
organized into four operating divisions: RaEw
(i) the content solution and business consultation G) WAL 5 M e
(ii) the IT enabling technology (i) B AR AR ) Al
(iii) the educational content services (i) 2B WA
(iv) the logistics services G(v) PR
During the financial year, the Group disposed of its RHMBUEREEN » AREECHE 3
educational content services business. BNE R EH -
An analysis of the Group’s results by business segment N S K1 g P T
is as follows: T
2006
“ERENE
HK$°000
T#L
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HEERRE RLRBEH
Content solution Educational
and business T enabling Logistics content
consultation  technology services Total services  Consolidated
MARERE  ERA ‘
EYEZ T T Yt T ¢ Wit B mA M ga
Turnover BEH
Sales to external WAMR% F
customers e 969 46! 280,080 281,510 2 281,532
Results R4
Segment results SRS 677 437 16,848 17,962 2 17,984
Interest income FEBA 60 454 514
Unallocated corporate REAFZ
expenses SRR (36,199) (1435) (37,634)
Loss from operations R EHEH (18,177) (959) (19,136)
Finance costs g AR (210) (1,196) (1,406)
Provision for impairment  J& Al FEHHE 5%
on other receivables L A (34,593) — (34,593)
(52,980) (2,155) (55,135)
Gain on disposal of operations i 37 & F = 37,351 37,351
(Loss)/profit before income bRt
{ax expense (1) /] (52,980) 35,196 (17,784)
Income tax expense FiT At B — — —
(Loss)fprofit for the year A4S () / HitAl (52,980) 35,196 (17,784)
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7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7 SWEFR )
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) FEEHEKRA -EHZB H)
(Cont’d)
2006
ZEEAE
HK$’000
Ti#x
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SHER R RIERBEH
Content solution Educational
and business T enabling Logistics content
consultation technology services Total services  Consolidated
MAGEERE WA
PEYES T TN 61 Bt Wit BE WA B

Assets jid:d
Segment assets S B 610 61 34,995 35,666 = 35,666
Unallocated corporate Rz
assets SHRE 2,680 — 2,680
Total assets g 38,346 = 38,346
Liabilities A
Segment liabilities SR (663) (93) (35,014) (35,770) = (35,770)
Unallocated corporate REAFZ
liabilities REAH (23,649) = (23,649)
Total liabilities HEAA (59.419) — (59.419)

Other segment information 3733 ¥ bt

Capital expenditure AL 178 8 276 462 = 462
Amortisation of land 3 AW

lease premium iR — — — — 7 7
Depreciation of property, W3 KR

plant and equipment Bl PN 304 9 738 1,051 848 1,899
Amortisation of P58 A

development cost — 446 — 446 = 446
Impairment of goodwill B = = = = = =
[mpairment loss on B 5 Rk

trade receivables WHER = — 31 31 — 51
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7

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7 SR (4
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) BB - EBHHW (H)
(Cont’d)
2005
R
HK$000
T#r
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REERRH RLRBEH
Content solution Educational
and business T enabling Logistics content
consultation  technology services Total services  Consolidated
MARERE  HERA
EYES T T I %1 Bl S Hit BERERE B
Turnover BEH
Sales to external WAMR% F
customers B 15,538 398 277,226 293,162 1 293,234
Results 24
Segment results SR 13,652 (1,068) (1,087) 11,297 (3,885) 7412
Interest income FLEBA 6l 7 88
Unallocated corporate Rz
expenses SR (16,032) (2,802) (18,834)
Loss from operations REkH (4,674) (6.660) (11,334)
Finance costs g A (27) (4,286) 4
Loss before income ]
tax expense (4,701) (10,946) (15,647)
Income tax expense Fi AR BL B 3 (24) = (24)
Loss for the year XY (4725) (10.946) (15,671)
Assets {3
Segment assets SV B 680 1,014 37,958 39,652 37,073 76,725
Unallocated corporate RiEA B
assels SMEE 5,298 - 5,298
Total assets Mg 44950 37,073 82,023
Liabilities ff
Segment liabilities A (194) (103) (34,607) (35,504) (29,520) (65,024)
Unallocated corporate REEABLZ
liabilities SMA R (10,872) — (10872)
Total liabilities A A (46,376) (29,520) (75,896)
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7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

7 HEER )

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) FEEHEKRA -EHZB H)
(Cont’d)
2005
R
HK$’000
T#r
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HEEARY BILEEEH
Content solution Educational
and business  IT enabling Logistics content
consultation technology services Total services Consolidated
MAMERE  EAAS
PEYES T T YT T Wit AE AR i
Other segment information JLA2 3 %R
Capital expenditure AR 171 10 412 593 1 594
Amortisation of land Ha1H
lease premium Fi — — — — 170 170
Depreciation of property, W3~ B R
plant and equipment Bl PN 244 2 732 997 2,036 3,033
Amortisation of B 2 A
development cost — 446 — 446 — 446
Impairment of goodwill B = = 4,944 4,944 = 4,944
Impairment loss on trade B 5 e
receivables AR = — 11 11 — 11
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7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7 SR (4
(b) Secondary reporting format — geographical (b)  REF X — S
segments
An analysis of the Group’s results by geographical A% 4 [H) 2 48 0 b B 4 3 = 4 B
segment is as follows: T
2006
“ERBAE
HKS$’000
T#7T
Segment Segment Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
BEHR Vg3 g g4 BB X
Hong Kong Bk 9,772 (12,258) 5,610 186
PRC g 250,436 (4,251) 28,232 276
USA and Others KRS A 21,324 (1,275) 4,504 —
2005
R
HK$'000
T#7T
Segment Segment Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
BRH Vg g3 { YA 3
Hong Kong Bk 5,593 (2,586) 8,166 186
PRC g 247,287 (8,245) 67,199 395
USA and Others 5B B3 At 40,354 (591) 6,658 13
Revenue from the Group’s discontinued operations was AR E R R Z Wt B R E
derived mainly from the PRC and Hong Kong. Hh B % A v o
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LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss from operations is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of services
Staff costs (excluding
directors’ remuneration)
— Wages and salaries
— Retirement benefits
scheme contributions
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land
lease premium
Amortisation of
development costs
Written off unreconciled

inter-branch balances

[mpairment loss on trade receivables

Provision for impairment
on other receivables

Impairment of goodwill

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in

respect of land and buildings
Legal fees

Net exchange loss

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

8 EKBEH
AL [ 78 45 s 15 T R AN B R 51 45 TE AR A
oo
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RERBEH RILEBEH ER
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
CRENE CEBNE ZZERE SRTHE ZE2BNF CZRNE
HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Fibx T Fibx T TFibx T
M AR 263,526 256,357 = = 263,526 256,357
BT HA (B84
D)
— LERE#E 18,059 15479 = 119 18,059 15,598
— RARHA
At BBk 1,439 928 = 36 1,439 964
A G1ES 810 669 35 3 845 672
IE R )
L PN 1,051 998 848 2,035 1,899 3,033
Bt
St — — 71 170 71 170
GRS
446 446 = — 446 446
A RHIR
2425 A 157 1,711 = = 157 1,711
B 50 e i
ZBHER 51 11 = = 51 11
Al W B
Z W (R 34,593 = = = 34,593 —
(R RUAEN = 4,944 = = = 4,944
HEZmE - FF R
itz (@A) /B4 (32) 6 = = (32) 6
TR
REmnmse 3,642 3,205 = 57 3,642 3,262
BREN 1,326 1,406 242 1,589 1,568 2,995
T 3t 65 4 ¥ 290 27 = 25 290 252
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9  FINANCE COSTS 9  RREA
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RS LG BILBBEE Ba

2006 2003 2006 2003 2006 2003
CEBANE S CERLE CREAE ZRFRE SRRANE ZERLE
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
T#r T T#L F#r T#L F#r
Other interest HAA B 210 2 — 273 210 300
Interest on convertible notes BRI R = = 1,196 4,013 1,196 4013
210 2 1,196 4,286 1,406 4313

10

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group’s employees makes monthly
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earning
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount
of employer’s contributions made by the Group to the
MPF Scheme was approximately HK$241,000 (2005:
HK$189,000).

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries and representative offices in the PRC are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan
for their employees in the PRC. According to the rules
prevailing in the PRC, the Group is required to contribute
approximately 11% to 15% of the basic salary of its
employees in the PRC, and has no further obligations for
the actual pension payments or post-retirement benefits. The
state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, approximately
HK$1,210,000 (2005: HK$787,000) was paid by the Group
with respect to such retirement plan.

10 B4R A 3

A A5 [ AR 4 A o o o) e 2 B 4R )
¥ SR s R 0G4k 190 1 8 5 1) @ B Rt or
AR A (R LFE]) - 5.
TR A wl ) Ja 7 2 Bk 3 > BRI
FENEH o RBEEETH > REFHZ
REFHHSHIZARERZBA (€%
G5 S A ) 5% % RE T EIAE
ftax > s H ALK 0L 1,0009 00 % LR
B Z Bk I B B -

BKE_RRAET_AZ+—HILSE
BE > S R AR A w1 2 08 gt
SRARKI F5241,000% 00 (ZEBERA ¢
189,000#57C) °

b B AR > P B A F &
AR I = o 28 1) 4 v B0 L T 2 R
5 W AR AR ET B R bk o AR B B
AT o A A 1 280 v (B 0 B 3 AR 7
11 %E15%NE ALK > T IEAE f]
BB AR PR 4 S B AR PR A% 1 ) B 4 A
AL 3E— 2B %G - BIKEBZ AR
PR 4x 3% H R i 1R 5K B 2 R IR R R
% - BKERFEAFETHA=1+—HI
AEJE > AEE [ b AR AR T E A 2 A
KK F 1,210,000 00 (B HAF ¢
787,000¥7C) °
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 11 EFREHRIOTBABRFHE
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) HEHHE
The details of emoluments (excluding share option FEBREZH S DGR 5
benefit) of every Director are shown below: mr
Year ended 31 December 2006 RE_FFENFELH=1—H
IEAE B
Retirement
Basic salaries, benefits
allowances and scheme
Fees other benefits contribution Total
FEARF A B Bk H A
Name of Director HHES H4 B A 4 ik #f% At
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
T TEx T T
Xie Xuan e — 990 — 990
Ho Wing Yiu (Note 1) fy &0 (Hft1) — 984 12 996
Law Shiu Kai, Andrew Bkt
(Note 2) (Hti£2) — 2 = 2
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond e — 24 — 24
Wu Jixue Y33 — 30 — 30
Yang Qiulin (Note 3) WArkAk (Hfit3) = = — —
Yang Zhenhong B ik — 18 — 18
Zhang Daorong RIE 4 — 48 — 48
— 2,096 12 2,108
Year ended 31 December 2005 PE_FFHFET—H=1—H
AR AFE
Basic salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefits scheme
Fees other benefits contribution Total
HEARH A - Bl BAHA
Name of Director HHEH e B AR % Ak Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T& T8 T8 T
Xie Xuan il — 2,160 — 2,160
Ho Wing Yiu ] 6 1 — 2,160 12 2,172
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond R — 24 — 24
Law Shiu Kai, Andrew HEAiE - 24 — 24
Wu Jixue A — 20 — 20
Yang Zhenhong Wt - 18 = 18
Zhang Daorong RIER = 43 — 48
— 4,454 12 4,466
Note: Mt =
1.  Resigned on 7 December 2006. 1. RERBANETZHEHEHE -
2. Ceased on 26 January 2006. 2. WRIZRFBARE-HZTANHEE-
3.  Appointed on 20 December 2006. 3. RIEZRFAETHZTHZEIE-
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 11 FFRERATBNBFH & (H)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) o 5 v 3 D B
The five highest paid employees during the year BN Tk SR B ARG R AL
included two (2005: two) executive directors whose AL (CRFRAR : WAL BITES >
remuneration are set out in directors’ remuneration in W% Z &P X () EFHZ
(a) above. Details of remuneration of the remaining P 4 — 6 o 4E N E S A Hag =4
three (2005: three) employees are as follows: AL (CRFBRAR : =40 R B Z M4
T
2006 2005
“EEBANE “RENAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T-#C F#x
Basic salaries, allowances FEAH 4~ B K&
and other benefits H Al A 25 1,557 1,576
Retirement benefits scheme A8 AR A A F 4k
contributions 24 30
1,581 1,606
The emoluments fell within the following band: T 4 47 DA T i -

Number of highest paid
individuals
3 v 30 0 LA
2006 2005
SRR DRERE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 F%1,000,000% 70 3 3
There were no emoluments paid by the Group to the AR > AR ) 3 S0 S A T 4 4 2
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining WA E T IEE CER
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during TAE 2 ) o

the year (2005: Nil).

72  Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited i ¥ % & (¥ JBt) 45 B 2




Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A T

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 PifaBip ¢
(a) Income tax expense in the consolidated income (a) WEFEE MBS HB X

statement represents:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
HEHERLH B LB TH A
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
SRR CRRIE CRBANE CERIE CRRAE ZERLE
HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$’000
Ti#i T#x Ti#i T#x T#i T#L
Current: ik
Hong Kong profits tax FBH R — — - — - —
PRC income tax 4 A B - 2% — — — 2%
— 24 — — — 24

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for (2005:
Nil) as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. The statutory tax rate for
Hong Kong profits tax is 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the statutory
corporate income tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC
ranged from 15% to 33% (2005: 15% to 33%).

FH A A S [ A 9 A 7 o 3 6 2 2R
JEFRBLR A » WO i S AR A A
BB CERHAE - ) - N
TET S 2 A AN ST B i P 2 7
WHEBEERERE17.5% CEF
FLAF 2 17.5%) o FoAth b [ B HRL 16
Fll Z BEIE T3 AR5 AR 48 [ 287 S 7 1R
RZBABE » LBTHREH
R R EEE -

BEZFZZANFETZH=Z1T—HI
AR > AR P B o R IR
Bt IS A Wl 2 i e A R R LB R
15%%33% (Z“FFHLMF : 15
33%) o
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 12 P B % (%)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable (b)  HEAA T B IR RS 2 F AR R Z
to the Group’s loss before income tax expense using 258 B AT S8 T A AR 4R 8 Z BR B
the statutory rates for the countries in which the 3B BH S BT R 1R 2 BLIE X 7 (%
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax B) o BLIRACEE E H BB ARG A Z
charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates are as follows: BRI (GEf) 2 HIRWF -

2006 2005
CRRAE CREAAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#
Loss before income tax expense 5% Bt 49 B4 1l i 48
Continuing operations R R EE (52,980) (4,701)
Discontinued operations O IR R 35,196 (10,946)
(17,784) (15,647)
Tax credit calculated at Hong Kong &7 ¥ F A FLBL % 17.5%
profits tax rate of 17.5% AR BLIEHE A 3,112) (2,738)
Effect of different tax rates of A Ath ] 2 0 [ 2
subsidiaries operating in Wi JB§ 2 W] B R A ] 2 5 2
other jurisdictions 1,709 (1,748)
Income not subject to tax W% B Z WA (4,380) (3,081)
Expenses not deductible AReBEZ BH 32
for tax purposes 4,659 6,151
Utilisation of previously 5 FH 48 A R e o2
unrecognised tax losses i Y Jigs 1R (110) (149)
Unrecognised temporary R T R W TR 2 B
differences and tax losses .8 s 18 1,234 1,589
Income tax charge for the year AN Z PR — 24
(c) At 31 December 2006, the Group had tax losses arising (c) MIZEAE+T_HA=1+—H &

in Hong Kong of approximately HK$21,944,000
(2005: HK$15,526,000) that were available for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Such losses

may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax

asset has been recognised in respect of such losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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13 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Disposal of the educational content business

On 13 September 2005, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of the entire interest in Eleson Inc.,
Cyber Strategy Limited, Lecture Kit Company Limited,
China Cyber University Limited, Union Resources
(Educational Development) Limited, Asian Educational
Services Limited, Sinotrade Technologies Limited, Comfirm
(China) Limited, & J B 7 {7 & IR % A R 2 7] and Wi
HIRE R (HRB) A M AF (the “Disposed Group”),
each of which was either an indirectly wholly-owned or a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The disposal
was completed on 23 May 2006.

The result of the discontinued operations included in the
consolidated income statement is as follows:

Loss for the year from AR O IR
discontinued operations BEBEH

Revenue LN

Expenses BH 32

Loss from operations before B o Ty s 4H
income tax expense

Income tax expense Fi 45 Fi B 52

Gain on disposal of operations Hy B B B

Profit/(loss) for the year from AP ORI RS
discontinued operations EBwA S (E8)
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13 DRILESEE

HIELE TR S 3

N_FRHFENAT=H » REFEFT "
S o HEH A Eleson Inc. ~ #ER
WA AR~ A RRA R~ g
HMANBERAHR - BAER EHFER)
A B/ ] > Asian Educational Services
Limited ~ ERM P8 AR AR ~ FE/EH
(F ) FRAR - M ERESRESR
FR 2S5 KB & IR 2 B (ERR) A R
AFE ((CHEELE]) 2 2R » Lk
5 oy ) IRE Y s A A 1 Y A R
A ENEAR - ZHECR-F
FEANELH ZTF=H5%HK -

BRFERGEERAMENZ CA LR
EBWEGWMT

2006 2005
ZRENE ZERERE

Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M it T#C T#c
476 559

(2,631) (11,5053)

8 (2,155) (10,946)
(2,155) (10,946)

30 37,351 —
35,196 (10,946)
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14 LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations:

(a)

(b)

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
Group’s loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$17,071,000 (2005: HK$14,981,000)
and the weighted average number of 476,237,105
shares (2005: 476,237,105 shares) in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as there are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for each of
the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2006.

14 #BEHE
R B R R R RIS T

(a)

(b)

9 I BE A s 48 T AR 95 A 2 1 gt o
A6 G R X17,071,0008 58 (FE
T4 2 14,981,000 50) MAF N B3
A7 35 488 I Z A - ¥4 $5476,237,105
Rt & (2R A4 476,237,105
) ©

HRRE _ZFHFE T _A=Z1—
HEZZZANE+HA=+—HIk
AEE I SRR T RS ) 2 508
JBe o W AR A A I 4 -

From continuing operations: R H e R S
2006 2005
TRENE “EFhAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#x
Loss attributable to equity holders N/
of the Company JRE A s 18 17,071 14,981
Profit/(loss) for the year from AR FE L AR IR AR
discontinued operations 28w (EiH) 35,196 (10,946)
Loss for the purpose of basic loss JFH R 5 1 35 A s 4R
per shares H W Z 3| 52,267 4,035
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the (a) FFIRFLA G T ARG AR 45 ] 1 3R M

(a)

(b)
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Group’s loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$52,267,000 (2005: HK$4,035,000)
and the weighted average number of 476,237,105
shares (2005: 476,237,105 shares) in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as there are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for each of
the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2006.

(b)

15 B R AR 452,267,000 70 (2R
FL44,035,0009 70) KA N CLE1T
58 e 2 AINREF- 35 85476,237,105 %
FHE (CZRFEHAF ¢ 476,237,105
JBt) o

HRRE _ZFHFET _A=1+—
HEZZZFNETZA=Z1+—HIL
AF B N 3 B4 T LTS ) 2 %
B > WO R 25 A 4
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W3k -~ Bm Kkl
Leasehold ~ Furnitureand ~ Computer and Motor
Buildings ~ improvement fixtures equipment vehicles Total
By HEWEE O BERKE  ENRGRE it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Ti#x T Ti#x T T T

Cost: A ¢

At 1 January 2005 REZRLE-H—H 38,006 1,107 854 3431 806 44,204
Additions RE = 100 59 435 = 594
Disposallwite off iV b - - (15) @31 - (46)
At 31 December 2005 and REFFLET A=A

| January 2006 ZRERE-A-H 38,006 1207 898 3,835 806 47752
Additions e = = 19 00 m 46
Disposalfwrite off /s - - (12) = (198) (210)
Disposal of subsiciaries R A ) (38,006) — — (87) - (38.093)
Exchange difference 1 5 = 6 11 4 11 10
At 31 December 2006 RZZZAETZHZT—H = 1213 916 4010 842 6,981

Accumulated depreciation and R R -

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2005 REZRHLE-H—H 6,464 340 362 2,456 565 10,187
Charge for the year Bt 2035 181 153 562 102 3,033
Disposalfwrite off s /i = = 9) (30) = (39)
At 31 December 2005 and REFFLET A=A

1 January 2006 REBFNE-A—A 8,499 51 506 2,988 667 13,181
Charge for the year L3 & 848 199 140 479 233 1,899
Disposalfwrite off /s - - (6) - (185) (191)
Disposal of subsidiaries e A (9,347) - - 87) - (9434)
Exchange difference 1 5 = 2 6 B § 39
At 31 December 2006 RZZZAETZHZT—H = m 646 3403 X 5,494

Net carrying amount: [

At 31 December 2006 RERZAETZAZA—H = 491 20 607 119 1487
At 31 December 2005 REFFLET A=A 29,507 686 392 847 139 31571
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15

(Cont’d)

The Group’s land and buildings located in the PRC were

disposed of during the year.

During the year, the cost of motor vehicles acquired under
finance leases by the Group was HK$142,830 (2005: Nil).
At the balance sheet date, the net carrying amount of motor
vehicles held under finance leases was HK$95,220 (2005:

Nil).

16 LAND LEASE PREMIUM

Cost:
At 1 January
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January
Amortisation for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December

16

)% S
#—H—H
5 A I 2

BrZH=+—H
Rl gy
#—H—H
A 2 i

H B i I 2
Rt+=ZA=+—H

I i {5 1
Rt+=_HA=+—H

The Group’s interests in land lease premium held in the PRC

under operating lease were disposed of during the year.

Yok ~ W5 Bk i ()

A AR AL v B 2 A R A R AR
i o

FAASAE BE Y > SR 1 el A B A
AT Z IR B 5 142,830 8 CER
FAE 2 M) o AR H > AL R E
FHLE F5 A Z VB A R T 35 % 95,2209
G (CEFH : E) o

-+ 3 L 5
2006 2005
R
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
7,741 7,741
(7,741) —
— 7,741
453 283
71 170
(524) —
— 453
— 7,288

ACER s b B A A S R Z A
EH R O RS o
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17 DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Cost:
At 1 January and
31 December

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January
Amortisation for the year

At 31 December

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December

17 B3 AR
2006 2005
TREANA “ERFHA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T80
AR
H—H—HX
F=JE == 1,352 1,352
Bl B -
R—H—H 818 372
AR AT 5 4k 81 446 446
wRt+—_H=+—H 1,264 818
TR N
wt+_H=1+—H 88 534

The amount represents direct development costs incurred

for the development of “Advanced Distribution and

Transportation Systems” less government grant, and is

amortised on a straight-line basis over three years.
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18 GOODWILL 18 w5
The amount of goodwill capitalized as assets in the T 3R U A WA L R R A
consolidated balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of AR FTES s REGEEAMBRELR
Ever-OK International Forwarding Co., Ltd. in 2004 is as bk — & B Z RSB T
follows:
2006 2005
“EEANE EFLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TF#c
Cost: BEAR
At 1 January and 31 December w—H—HR
+—-HA=+—H 4,944 4,944
Accumulated impairment losses: Bl A 1 -
At 1 January w—H—H 4,944 —
Impairment T AE — 4,944
At 31 December mt+—_H=+—H 4,944 4,944
Net carrying amount: I i ¥+ 4L
At 31 December wr_H=+—H — —
19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 BE 2w HE
Company
A& 2 ¥
2006 2005
CERANE ZEFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#C T#T
Unlisted shares, at cost I B By - JBAE 14,083 14,083
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL Pt} g 2 ] ik A 131,157 126,298
145,240 140,381
Less: Impairment losses Wk : PRAE N 18 (145,239) (140,380)
1 1
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19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 19 MWEA ¥ BERR (4F)

Fi Jg 2 ) =2 4 A 0 SE R R e S > e B
TR 1248 H N &R -

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and not due for repayment within the next twelve months.

TRECTHAREZ RS  BEKA
(CCRVIEER 2 i) PAEE S

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets and
liabilities of the Group.

Issued and Proportion of ownership interest
fully paid P A7 R 2k b %
Place of share capital/ Group’s
Name incorporation registered effective Held by the Held by a Principal
and operation capital interest Company  subsidiary activity
4 1 ALY A3 CHf RS  AEEHZ AR 7
BB Bk GEMEA RS it AFERAE BEEE
Advant Development Limited The BritishVirgin US$10 60% — 60% Investment
Islands holding
SR IE LT 1070 RE R
AIR Logistics International The BritishVirgin US$1 100% — 100% Holding of
Holdings Limited Islands trademarks
KR IE LT R 13678 FE A T
AIR Logistics The BritishVirgin US$1 100% — 100% Provision of
International Limited [slands consulting
administrative and
management services
P il 170 SEBLRI ~ 17080 R B AR
Asian Informtion Resources The BritishVirgin US$200 100% 100% — Investment holding
(BVI) Limited (Note (a)) Islands
(Hfit(a) By )it 200370 RE R
Asian Information Hong Kong HK$11,228,290 100% — 100% Provision of on-line
Resources Limited content and related
technical services,
information
technology solutions
and consultancy
services and
e-commerce
S A B AT R A it 11,228,290 76 664 EEH K
BB MR ~ Bl
LB i 0 5 R B
85 DA K 3 F 7
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong HKS$2 100% — 100% Provision of treasury
Finance Limited functions to group
companies
i 2T RS B
s A
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong HKS$2 100% — 100% Provision of
Investment Limited administration
services to
group companies
itk R AR R BB R
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19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Conr'd) 19 KB )
Issued and Proportion of ownership interest
fully paid i A R A 2% P %
Place of share capital/ Group’s
Name incorporation registered effective Held by the Held by a Principal
and operation capital interest Company  subsidiary activity
£ wk Wb o R AREZ HA R i1 I
BE LS WA dmgeAR MRS fifi AARE BERE
Asian Information Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% — 100% Provision of on-line
Resources Marketing Limited content and related
technical services
it 10,0009 76 100% R4 L&A K
Bl B 1 5
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong HKS$5,000 100% — 100% Provision of software
TechLogic Limited solutions services
S B AR RA T ik 5,000% 76 AL A O R IR
Ever-OK International The PRC RMB17,300,000 60% — 60% Provision of air and
Forwarding Co., Ltd. (Note (b)) ocean freight services
T i 38 i A L l ARM17,300,00078 RO 2 RO IR
(i)
Ever-OK International Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% — 100% Provision of air and
Forwarding Co., Limited ocean freight services
BB (R FIRAT BB 200,000% 7 A 22 8 % 4 R
Ever-OK International The United States US$200,000 60% — 60% Provision of air and
Forwarding Co., Ltd. of America ocean freight services
ey’ 200,000 7 TRt 22 Bt IR 5
Forest Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% — 100% Provision of internet
International Limited solution services
AR A PR A ik 10,000% 7 A 8 0 A e O 6 M
Myhome Network Limited Hong Kong HK$900,000 77.78% — 71.78% Investment holding
KM E AR A IR AT it 900,000 7 BB
Notes: Bt =
(a)  Asian Information Resources (BVI) Limited (“AIR BVI”) (a) Asian Information Resources (BVI)
is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are Limited ([AIR BVIl) B2 & B E
indirectly held by the Company through AIR BVI. EERE T R S A A B NS

ZMAIR BVIFZEHA -

(b)  Ever-OK International Forwarding Co., Limited is a jointly (b) YL f 1 7 [2 R AT PR 2 ) & R
foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC for a term BOLZAPE A B - REHE_ZR
of 20 years up to 2024. AR s BB AR o

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any B AFRBEREEZFAFET A=

time during the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: Nil). +— H IR BT A AR (T

FRLAE ) -
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 B 5 K 3 fib E B K

Group Company
A Y/ |
2006 2005 2006 2005
“REANE . CRFRE CREANE . CFFLE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Hif it T#7x T#x T#7x T#7T
Trade receivables B 5 R 26,794 28,285 — —
Prepayments, deposits and A AH ~ g R
other receivables Ll WA R 2k 3,722 6,353 — 38
Amount due from R W I 6 ) kR
related companies 31 18 18 — —
30,534 34,656 — 38

R0 M B o B L At FE Wk T i i
SUL A AR -

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables approximates their fair value.

ACEE M 1) % P PR 2 A7 B T 2 75 8
BERXET ~ SR PR Z 8
B TS 2 i B R S AR A L REE
745 0 21 ) R D0 A B R Mk T AR
B4 - EFEBESH - FPEELR
i B B PR 3K AR 3 B B B AR I AR 9

creditability of customers and other qualitative factors. o

The credit terms granted by the Group to a customer are
determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to the
size of sales contracts, recurrent sales with the customers
and their credit history. The Group makes provision for trade
receivables based on specific review. Provision is made
against trade receivables after considering the amount due,

AR F A A A Z B 5 RE WG Z R i

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as

at the balance sheet date are as follows: SHWME :
2006 2005
BN ZERRLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T

Outstanding balances aged: R 7 MR K A R MR e

0 to 30 days 0& 30K 15,048 14,089
31 to 60 days 312 60K 6,554 5,292
61 to 90 days 61Z2 90K 2,631 7,388
91 to 150 days 91 150K 1,017 1,405
Over 150 days 150K 1,544 1,208
26,794 29,382
Less: Impairment losses s P E i 1R — (1,097)
26,794 28,285
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20 BB Ko A ME B Ak (4F)

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency B 5 e WK T AL HE R 5 DA B A R 2h g
of the entity to which they relate: B U Z B FHEZ 3R0H -
2006 2005
TRENE “EFhAE
000 ’000
Renminbi N RMB3,714t = RMB7,6187C
United States dollars e USD2,935% 5 USD2,6573K 7t
Euro ik oo EUROSHkt =~ EURO3EKIT
21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERBEEHY
2006 2005
“EEBANE “EERNhE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C T#c
Cash at bank and in hand Bl Ak S Bl & 6,237 7,974
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet HEAMEKDREIZB S RBLSHED
are the following amounts denominated in a currency other BHETHIUA B A F e & Db &
than the functional currency of the entity to which they W aHE Z 3H -
relate:
2006 2005
TRENE “EFhAE
000 000
Renminbi N RMB1,8267C =~ RMBS5,2537C
United States dollars Xt USD550% 7~ USD265%K G
Singapore B m 3 o6 SGD1¥; ¥ SGD13
Taiwan WA NTD7Hi ¥  NTD7Hi & H
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 B 5 B ST Al HE A MR K
Group Company
L3 .| AR
2006 2005 2006 2005
SERNE CERFLE CERAF CRFLE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Witk T#x T#1 T#x T#7
Trade payables 5 A ek 29,114 29,020 — —
Accruals and HHREM R
other payables JE A e £ 0 0 31 9,424 9,536 1,091 979
Advances from customers % F #zk 223 222 — —
Amount due to directors A % F#H 31 — 8,890 — —
Amount due to minority A A #R R IH
shareholders — 4,868 — —
38,761 52,536 1,091 979
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and T 2 B 5 B At Ak sk T 2 MR i
other payables approximates their fair value. B NP KRB -
An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at L 0% 36 I i i A A T SR BB IR B B L 2 H
the balance sheet date, based on the date of completion of FHEALEEN GG H ZE 5 A RRZ
services provided by the suppliers to the Group is as follows: HRER AT IR F
2006 2005
ZEEANE EFLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
Outstanding balances aged: TR A TR MR K A B TR 1 -
0 to 30 days 0F30H 16,200 12,638
31 to 60 days 31260H 8,394 8,067
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,653 6,893
91 to 150 days 91£150H 767 1,058
Over 150 days i 150H 1,100 364
29,114 29,020
Included in trade payables are the following amounts B 5 BE AT X AL EE T 5 DA B A w] h g
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency B DIA Z B WFHE 2 3R -
of the Group to which they relate:
2006 2005
ZEEANE EFLF
’000 ’000
Renminbi N RMB10,2987%C = RMB7,6187C
United States dollars N USD2,3773% 6  USD2,733370
Euro k7o EURO15M = EURO4E T
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23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2006, the Group had obligations under

finance leases repayable as follows:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but
within 2 years

Less: Total future interest
expenses

Present value of lease
obligations

—H N

—HEREZERN

W RAH R
i A

HE & B

23 WEALE T ZRIE

REBBAETZAS T —H o AMRHE
2 RERR M RERL 6% T 2 /RIS T

2006 2005
ZEBAE “EFLE
Present value Present value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
B GALEE B AL B (L5 B (KL 5
WHZ B A WHZ B IH At
HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#xz F#x T
48 52 — —
39 46 — —
87 98 — —
11 —

87 —
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24 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 24 WU SR
The convertible notes recognised in the balance sheet is A E BRI R W R R SR R T A
caclulated as follows: mE
2006 2005
CEEANE ZEFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#C T#7T
At 1 January B—H—H 20,405 18,003
Interest expense F BB X 1,196 4,013
Interest payable JRE A ) S — (1,611)
Derecognition R e R (21,601) —
At 31 December R+=H=+—H — 20,405
All convertible notes were issued by a subsidiary of the P A v 45 5 52 0 4y A R [ 2 — ] R
Group and were derecognised upon disposal of the A VEAT o MR B BUAE BE HY B PR A
subsidiary by the Group during the financial year. R AR L TR o
25 OTHER PAYABLES 25 LA ME A MRk
Other payables represent amount due to an ex-director of A JE A R R B A AR 8 ) I R 2 K
the Company. At the balance sheet date, the amount due is W o AHEH > sk E T KA - R
unsecured, non-interest bearing and is not due for repayment ORI ARK2ME A NEE -
within the next twelve months.
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 JBAR
2006 2005
CRRNE | RERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T-#C
Authorised P AR
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000J8¢ %% Ji&
HK$0.1 each THI fEL0. 198 7T 2 5 48 Jit 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid CBAT KR AR
476,237,105 ordinary shares of 476,237,105 % & %
HK$0.1 each THIE0. 13 T 2 ¥ 78 i 47,624 47,624
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27 RESERVES

Group

At 1 January 2005
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2005
and | January 2006

Transfer
Disposal of subsidiaries
Loss for the year

Exchange difference on
consolidation

At 31 December 2006

Company

At 1 January 2005
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2005
and 1 January 2006

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2006

RERFHLE-A—H

KERER

ui
hEREAR
KRR
RREREN

R A

RoZZLE-A-H
AEERR

REFFLELZAZT-AR

“REREA -
KELER
RoBAE A -

27 il i
3|
Share Capital ~ Convertible ~ Translation ~ Accumulated
premium reserve  mote reserve reserve losses Total
i TR
REd  GEGE REE (111 S ] 7 it
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TH# TH# TH# TH# TH#
87,707 35,343 3,495 — (154.591) (28,046)
- - — — (14,981) (14,981)
87,707 35,343 3,495 — (169,572) (43,027)
— — (3.495) - 3495 -
- (9323) — — — (9323)
- - - - (17071) (17.071)
_ _ _ %) - (93)
87,707 26,020 — (93) (183,148) (69,514)
AT
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
B B [ Rtk it
HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T#x T#
87,107 13,882 (154,134) (52,545)
— — (3,168) (3,168)
87,107 13,882 (157,302) (55,713)
— — (8,214) (8,214)
87,107 13,882 (165,516) (63,927)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the net asset value of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date of the
Group reorganization.

AT Z B A R iR A A R BT M
< T A B A A R AL O 0 A2
i W B 2 PO A ) 2 A 2R o
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RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
share premium, capital redemption reserve and contributed
surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of share premium, capital
redemption reserve and contributed surplus if:

(1) itis, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due, or

(i) the realizable value of its assets would thereby less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of
shares as at the date of the group reorganization and the
waiver of loans by a related party on 1 February 2004.

All the reserves of the Group are attributable to the Company
and its subsidiaries.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases its office property, staff quarters and motor
vehicles under operating lease arrangements. The lease for
property is negotiated for terms from one to four years.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office property, staff quarters and motor
vehicles as follows:

27

28

G it (4%)

HLBE DR ST 2 3 (TS > MRt
{81~ 2 A I B B80T 69 U
TR > Hedl -

(i) B B 23 IR 1% 20 35 AR 2 A
i =

(i) LR T A B DA T 2 A
HoA i B 2B AT I A Z A

A A WA B IR IR BB > s AB
v ] ~ 5 A I Il 5 % B AR AR AR
SR o AR 2 B A 1R AR A R B AT
3 e < T SR 4 P R AL 0
3 32 TS Ja > ] < T A e J A ¥ £
B > DRBEN LR R NUETH
—H#RERZ 2

PSR T Al A 340 A A A ) B R g
R o

BE SR

AEEMMBEREHE LM EHLRAE
i3k ~ B TAEa RITH > HERRHZ
FERB/—FEENLE o

REREZAETZH=ZT—H > A4EH
WM A ZWE ~ B TIHE RINHEZA
AT 2 KB A R R H AR A Z R
M E KA BT ¢

2006 2005

TRBNARE ZEERNAF

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#C T#c

Within one year —4FE N 432 2,321
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 58 —4F 258 1 4F (B 55 H R W) 566 326
998 2,647
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29

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme, under which it
may grant options to employees of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares
in the Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time, excluding for this purpose shares issued
on exercise of options. The subscription price will be
determined by a duly authorized committee of the Board of
Directors which includes all the independent non-executive
directors of the Company from time to time. The subscription
price will not be less than (a) the closing price of the shares
quoted on GEM on the date of offer of the options or (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares quoted on GEM
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options, whichever is the higher, provided that
the subscription price will not be lower than the nominal
value of the shares.

No share options were granted during the year and no share
options were outstanding at the beginning and end of the
year.

29 f B B A

Ao V) R R R R ) o T i A AR
8 B (BFEARNFPTHES) 5 TR
A T ey 2 i IR > M B TR 2
H A FH A 5] A IR AT IR (BEitt
T 5 S A 47 PR A0 i P A i 88 4T 2 Bt
1) T fEZ 10% o BRI A A 7] # 2
HEARMZZEE (BHEAAFAREZ
P BSL IR AT ) B o R A S
TR (a) AT 45 th W B A I 90 £ A1 SEAR
Z Wi BT B () JBE A 8 2 4% i B e
H 390 1k i A 22 55 B AR R SE AR Z F- 3 i
W (LR 2 ) > MERR AR
T e A Z T

A 9 S JHE 7 Hh TR o AR B A R
JHE 1 R AT T B o
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30 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group discontinued its educational content services
business operations at the time of disposal of its subsidiaries
as set out in note 13. Details of disposal of subsidiaries are

as follows:

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment
Land lease premium
Prepayment, deposits
and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Accrual and other payables
Amount due to holding company
Amount due to minority shareholders
Convertible notes
Tax payable

Release of capital reserve

Gain on disposal

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposal of

Note: Provision for impairment on amounts due from the disposed Mt E -

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 mEW)EA Y

B A

Wk ~ Wi K st
- A 55 ¥ 5

TEAS K ~ 24 B AL At B MR K

B4 Je RAT 5 B

TEAR e % A M A MRk
WA 422 M 2 ) sk S

WA 2 8 e Rk

QIR 9ire %

FE A AL I

5 A M A 10 B

8z Wtk
R

AP
Bl

B AR Z Bl TR A
BlaRE
8 2 Bl I RAT i B

subsidiaries of approximately HK$34,593,000 was charged

to consolidated income statement during the year.

TP B O 2 ) RO B 13) B H
ARSI AL B WA IR R -
Fhf J 2 W Z REAF RS E

2006
CRRAL
HK$°000
Tt

28,659
7,217

115
62
(796)
(33,991)
(5,638)
(20,650)
(2,956)

(27,978)
(9,323)

(37,301)
37,351

50

50

50

(62)

(12)

G V= - /N
34,593,000 70 5k JE =Z 915 15
ELAAF N 7R 4 A W 2% 28 I AT I
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

92  Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited i ¥ % & (¢ JBt) 45 B 2

Amount due from related companies included in trade
and other receivables is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

Amount due to minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
China Collections Limited, included in accruals and
other payables, of approximately HK$181,000 (2005:
HK$181,000) is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
has no fixed repayment terms.

Amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured,
bearing interest at the annual rate of 5% and is not
due for repayment within the next twelve months.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

During the year, there are two key personnel of the
Group being executive directors of the Group. Details
of remuneration and related benefits are disclosed in
note 11 to the financial statements.

31 BEALZY

)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

)

AR E 5 K oAt RE IR R IH N 2
YR WAL o 22 2 ) sk T SRR~ 4B

A B2 1) JRE ANk B i 2 W) 2 A B SR
China Collections Limitedz#k 8 (£55
T TE e B JE At A BR 3K) 49 %%
181,000%7C (ZFF L4 : 181,000
Won) J3 MEHG ~ AR 8 B [ 8 1
R o

WA 28 = R T AT - 4B S
TR 12 A AR -

WAk B ¢ 42 e sk O 2 JHE G
AR5 Dut B R B TRARRKA 2
il H AR

AEEBREHANBZHE
N A EIW 2B T AR

FTHEE o 7T B R B P 7 2
MR IP R -
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32 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

®

(i1)

Acquisition of subsidiary

On 8§ February 2007, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Mr. Xie Xuan (the
“Vendor”) to acquire 100% equity interest in Vega
International Group Limited (“Vega”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, for a cash consideration of US$50,000. The
Vendor is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company, and as such the transaction is a connected
transaction. However the connected transaction is a
transaction on normal commercial terms where each
of the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
is equal to or more than 0.1% but less than 2.5% and
the total consideration is less than HK$1,000,000.00,
thus falling within the de minimis exemption under
20.31(2)(b) of the GEM Listing Rules which was in
force at the relevant time and was therefore exempt
from the disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements.

Vega is principally engaged in the provision of services
in corporate finance and investment, project planning
and development, technology project brokerage
services, corporate development services, management
consulting and post acquisition advisory and
professional management services. Vega has been
granted a license to perform the said services in the
People’s Republic of China and therefore would be of
great assistance to the Group in expanding the role of
consultancy services in the Greater China Region. The
Company is interested in 100% of the entire issued
share capital of Vega. The Group considered that the
Acquisition represented a good attempt to expand its
existing business portfolio into the area of corporate
finance and development, and provides opportunities
for the Group to expand its existing businesses.

Issue of new shares

On 12 February 2007, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Asian Dynamics
International Limited (“Asian Dynamics”) for the issue
of 91,000,000 shares in the Company (“the
Subscription Shares”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and allot the Subscription Shares to
Asian Dynamics at the total consideration of
HK$9,100,000.

S 265 A T

32 &% H R B B R A B

®

(i1)

1 i g 2 )

PFRLFEHANH - KAH B
ATE (B 7) S 0% J i K
EM L Z AR AR Vega
International Group Limited
(M'Vegal) 100% B HE —F 5T L H &
otk > Bl ARIE 250,000 5C © B
T RARNFI AT E R IR TR - HUH
AARIZEEANL > Bt k5
JE R BREAE 5 o SR > H Y G T
AR Ty )34 W VG SRR KT O > 1)
FIHA S R (ARG LER) %
5 0.1 0 MEAR A 2.5% » 1 48
FRAE AKX 1,000,000.00% 76 > #
I AR B 0 A B I ) A R A SE AR |
W LRI 5520.31(2)(b)Ik T Z (K #
BKF A > Sl R 2 R TR T D
B R Sr R e 2 BLE o

VegaZ FEEEH 2 IRAESERE K
BB MW ~ L H B S B RE - £odiT
HH R ~ DERRIRE - &
S WA B 1% ) B S A BRI
% o Vegaa?f%%ﬁéqjﬁkﬁﬁ:*ﬂ@
PRt BB Z MR > JE AR
S A v 3 i 4 7 R ) OB 4
ZABRMREE - RAFHA
VegaZ # O AT R A 100% 2 HE
fi o ARER R A WU F I TS R
EBH e RAEME KRB RERZ
BB o S AR 18 4 2 4 e
BIFEBZHE -

AT e A

REFZLEZATTH > AAH
BLAR oy ) 2 — A ¥ B R Asian
Dynamics International Limited(
[Asian Dynamics])#t # 17
91,000,000/8 A< 2+ w1 JBE 43 (['5% i Je
B 1 )RT 7 R B bk > PR - AR
] 7% 1) Asian Dynamics % 17 & Fit.
i i BBy > HARE 259,100,000 9%
7‘5 )
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32 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
(ii) TIssue of new shares (Cont’d)

The Subscription Shares were issued in satisfaction
of the loan payable by the Company to Asian
Dynamics for monies that have been advanced to the
Company totaling HK$9,100,000.00.

Given that Asian Dynamics is the controlling shareholder
of the Company holding approximately 55.63%
shareholding interest in the Company, the subscription
of the Subscription Shares by Asian Dynamics constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and is subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, other than
Asian Dynamics and its associates at an extraordinary
general meeting. A circular of the Company containing,
among other things, further details of the Subscription
Agreement and a notice of the extraordinary general
meeting was dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company on 14 March 2007.

Contingent Liabilities

S.221 of Companies Ordinance Proceeding in the High
Court

The Company and several of its subsidiaries and former
subsidiaries and Mr. Ho Wing Yiu, the former Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, who has been
indemnified by the Company for any legal costs that he may
incur in relation to the litigation between the Provisional
Liquidators and its subsidiaries, have been involved in
litigation with the Provisional Liquidators of Union
Resources (Educational Development) Limited (“UR”), a
former subsidiary of the Company. The other companies in
the group which are involved are:— Asian Information
Resources (BVI) Limited, AIR Logistics International
Limited, and Beijing AIR Strategy and Information
Technology Limited. They have all been made respondents
by the Provisional Liquidators in their application for
obtaining documents under an application made pursuant
to section 221 of the Companies Ordinance.

32

B H A R R H (A

i) W E A R ()

TR AR Z BEAT TG s AT A A ] HE
f} Asian Dynamics &34} T 24X A #H]
Z 83%9,100,000.00% 7T ©

FH 7 Asian Dynamics % 48 2 7] Z #4
JBBER > FE A AR T #055.63% 2
i > ORI A SEAR b i LRI 5
20% > H Asian Dynamicsid i & 4>
—HE AR A F —HB AR S > W
S AR Oy ] B R (A B F6 Asian
Dynamics 5 H B 8 A )7 BB R AF
BlkE B o — A G
1) ~ PR R 2 R SR
R KR EEMZBROR _FF
CHEZH 10U H A 2 7 B R 8
ffii o

oA £
By K BE AR 2 vl B Y 58221 B 2 7 B

AR ) B FE T T O 2 ) A B e A
DL RS W i AT B AR R AT 2 R e A (AR 2
) Ot L e R B B A N % T B
) Z [ Z R T A Z A B A AR B
FEHEERGER ZERR)ARAF
(WA ] > A2 ] i B JBg 2 ) B R v A
N ZFan o A5 [ iy 4 22 8 2 4 W]
# : Asian Information Resources (BVI)
Limited ~ AIR Logistics International
Limited ~ b 55 G SR i & SR A PR 2
A o fE— TR A WA SE22 1T 2
B > A S5 B I N 2 R B S
s PRI R EREN -
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

S.221 of Companies Ordinance Proceeding in the High
Court(Cont’d)

The said companies contested the application of the
Provisional Liquidators but lost in the hearing on 10 August
2006. The Provisional Liquidators have since obtained a
costs order against the said companies. They have demanded
a sum of HK$1,404,576 from the said companies. The sum
demanded was considered to be unreasonable, hence no offer
has been made to settle the outstanding costs order. In the
circumstances, the issue requires to be adjudicated by the
High Court of Hong Kong. The maximum exposure of the
Company would be in the sum of HK$1,404,576 plus the
costs of taxation.

Further action on the S.221 order

Even though the Company and the relevant subsidiaries have
already endeavoured to give all documents to the Provisional
Liquidators, the Provisional Liquidators have still found the
discovery to be unsatisfactory. Consequently, they have
threatened to take further action against the Company and
its subsidiaries for the outstanding documents that they could
not locate or found missing. The Provisional Liquidators
have reserved all their rights in relation to the application,
including the right to apply to the Court to seek further relief.
If the Provisional Liquidators do make further application
to the Court, the company envisages that additional legal
costs will be incurred by the Company in relation to any
application which may be made.
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OUTSTANDING MATTERS — EVER-OK
INTERNATIONAL FORWARDING CO., LTD.
(USA)

Following the critical review of all the outside PRC units of
Ever-OK International Forwarding Co., Ltd. in December,
2006, the Los Angeles branch did not live up to the
Company’s return expectations and suffered from weak
management. A new target was set for management
performance and the staff in Los Angeles could not cope
with the demands. Accordingly, the Los Angeles office’s
operation was orderly wound-down during the first quarter
of 2007 with minimum impact to the overall operation of
the Group. The financial information of the Los Angeles
Office of the last quarter did not reach the Group in time for
the consolidation of the Group results for the year ended 31
December 2006. However, the unit was initially set up as a
complete separate entity registered in the United States and
with limited liability to the Group and has been operating
under strict budgets and just needed cash availability. The
Directors consider that adequate accrued expenditures and
financial provisions had been made for providing a true and
fair disclosure for the unit.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order
to confirm with the current year’s accounts presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 26 March 2007.
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